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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of CL Educate Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of CL Educate Limited
(‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as ‘the Group’) and its associate, as listed in Annexure 1, which comprise
the Consoclidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial
statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries and associate the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act, read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate,
as at 31 March 2022, and their consolidated profit (including other comprehensive income),
consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are’ further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group and its associate in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained together with the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in paragraph 18 of the Other Matters section
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited on
the consolidated financial statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2022 (cont’d)

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to Note 66 of the consolidated financial statements in respect of the scheme
of arrangement (‘the Scheme’) under sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 between
the Holding Company and five of its wholly-owned Indian subsidiaries approved by the
National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench, vide its order date 07 February 2022, as
per which such wholly-owned subsidiaries have been merged with the Holding Company, on
a going concern basis, with effect from the appointed date of 01 April 2019. Accordingly, the
standalone financial statements of the Holding Company have been adjusted to give effect to
the aforesaid business combination in accordance with the accounting treatment prescribed
in the Scheme, with a consequential impact on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements as explained further in the said note, which however is not in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with relevant rules and interpretations issued thereunder, as further described in the aforesaid
note.

Refer note 67 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements, which describes
uncertainties relating to legal action pursued by the Group against B&S Strategy Services
Private Limited ('B&S') before Honourable Delhi High Court for recavery of outstanding cash
consideration of Rs. 400 lacs from sale of its school business vertical. Further as described in
Note 68, the Group has receivables from Nalanda Foundation amounting to Rs. 500 lacs which
are long outstanding.

Based on legal advice and its assessment of the merits of the cases, the management is of
the view that the aforesaid receivable balances are good and recoverable and hence, no
adjustment is required in the accompanying consolidated financial statements as at 31 March
2022.

Note 58A to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, which describes the
termination of Business Transfer Agreement with an earlier prospective buyer for the sale of
infrastructure services business (the “"Assets") on slump sale basis by Career Launcher
Infrastructure Private Limited, a step-down subsidiary of the group. As detailed in the said
note, the management remains committed to its plan to sell the assets as on date and is
actively searching for new potential buyers to give effect to the disposal plan of the Assets. As
a result, the management considers the future disposal of the assets as highly probable and
continues to disclose such assets as "Disposal group-Asset held for sale” as on the reparting
date in accordance with Ind AS 105, Non -Current Assets held for sale and Discontinued
operations.

Our opinion is not modified in this respect of above matters.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the
consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the
subsidiaries and associate, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described helow to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited on
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (cont’d)

Kéj_éudit matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit

maftter

Revenue i'ét_:d_gnition (Refer note 2(6)(ii}
and note 37 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements)

We refer to the Group significant accounting
policies in note 2(ii) and the revenue related
disclosures in note 37 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Revenue is a key business driver for the
Company and is therefore, susceptible to
misstatement. Revenue recognition under
Ind AS 115, 'Revenue from contracts with
customers’ (‘Ind AS 115’) involves significant
judgement by the management in
identification of separate performance
obligations in contracts with multiple
performance obligations, determining
transaction price in view of discount offered
to the customers, allocation of such
transaction price to the identified

performance obligations to ensure the
revenue is booked in correct periods.
Further, for fixed price contracts, the

management assesses progress towards
complete satisfaction of performance
obligations basis the pattern in which content
is delivered by the Company lo the students
over a period of time.

Considering significant volume of
transactions, the materiality of amount
involved, and significant judgements

involved as mentioned above, revenue
recognition was identified as a key audit
matter for the current year audit.

Chartered Accountants

Our audit procedures included but not
limited to the following:

o Assessed the appropriateness of the
Group’s revenue recognition policy in
accordance with Ind AS 115 including
evaluation of management's assessment
of performance obligations determined to
be satisfied over time and related method
of measuring progress towards complete
satisfaction of such  performance
obligation.

e Understood, evaluated and tested the
design and operating of key controls
implemented by the Company/Group in
relation to revenue recognition including
discounts.

o Performed test of details for samples
selected from revenue transactions
recorded during the year by inspecting
invoices and other related supporting
documents for such samples. Further,
evaluated whether the revenue has been
recognized as per the accounting policy
of the Company for such samples.

o Performed substantive analytical
procedures which included review of
price, quantity and discounts variances
and month-to-month ratio analysis based
on customer level and company level

data.
o Tested the calculations related to
discounts and  other  supporting

documents on a test check basis.

e Evalualed the adequacy and accuracy of
relevant disclosures made in the
consolidated  financial statements  in
accordance with Ind AS 115,




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited on
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (cont’d)

Key audit matter (6&1&1)

(Refer

Note 2(C)(x) and Note 16 to the
accompanying consolidated financial
statements)

The Group has trade receivables of Rs
4 994 57 |lacs as at 31 March 2022 (net of
impairment of Rs 307.20 lacs). During the
year, the Company has recorded a charge of
Rs 183.19 lacs towards bad debts for such
trade receivables.

Owing to the nature of the operations of the
Group and related customer profiles, the
Company has significant long standing trade
receivable balances, for which appropriate
loss allowance is required to be created for
expected credit losses using simplified
approach in  accordance with  the
requirements of Ind AS 109, Financial
Instruments, measuring the loss allowance
equal to the lifelime expected credit losses.

For the purpose of expected credit loss
assessment of trade receivables, significant
judgement is required by the management to
estimate the timing and amount of realisation
of these receivables basis the past history,
customer profiles and consideration of other
internal and external sources of information
including the impact of COVID 19 pandemic
in aforesaid estimates.

Considering the significant judgement
involved, increased complexities due to the
pandemic, high estimation uncertainty and
materiality of the amounts involved, we have
identified loss allowance on frade
receivables as a key audit matter for the
current year audit.

| matter (cont’d)

How our audit addressed the key audit |

Our audit procedures included but not
limited to the following:

e Understanding the trade receivables
process with regards to valuation and
testing of controls designed and
implemented by the management.

Testing the accuracy of ageing of trade
receivables at year end on sample basis.

o Obtained a list of outstanding trade
receivables, identified significant long
outstanding receivables, and discussed
plan of recovery with the management.

o Circularized balance confirmations to a
sample of non-student trade receivables
and reviewed the reconciling items, if
any.

Verified the  appropriateness  of
judgements regarding provision for trade
receivables and assess as to whether
these provisions were calculated in
accordance with the Group’s provisioning
policies.

o Tested subsequent settlement of trade
receivables after the balance sheet date
on a sample hasis, as applicable.

Verified the related disclosures made in
notes to the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Ind AS
115 and Ind AS 109.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report

thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Chartered Accountants
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited on
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (cont'd)

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
incansistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consaolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding
Company's Board of Directors. The Helding Company'’s Board of Directors are responsible for
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its
associate in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible
for ensuring accuracy of records including financial information considered necessary for the
preparation of cansolidated Ind AS financial statements. Further, in terms of the provisions of
the Act the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, and its
associate company covered under the Act are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error. These financial statements have been used for the purpose of preparation of
the consalidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability
of the Group and of its associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of the companies included in the Group and of its associate.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise:
fram fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

Chartered Accountants



14.

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited on
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (cont’d)

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit In accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. Ve also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act
we are also responsible for expressing our apinion on whether the Holding Company has
adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group and its associates and joint ventures to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequale, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, fulure events or
conditions may cause the Group and its associate to cease to continue as a going
concern; and

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group, and its associate, fo express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of financial statements of such entities included
in the financial statements, of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the financial statements, which have been audited by the other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of lhe audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

156. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal central that we identify during our audit.

Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited on
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (cont’d)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safequards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

18.We did not audit the financial statements of four subsidiaries, whose financial statements

reflect total assets of ¥ 2,849.29 lakhs and net assets of 2 1,600.11 lakhs as at 31 March 2022,
total revenues of ¥ 2168.83 lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ 95.65 lakhs for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial
statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by
the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and associate,
and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaries and of associate, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Further, of these subsidiaries, three subsidiaries, are located outside India whose financial
statements and other financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in their respective countries and which have been audited by
other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective
countries. The Holding Company's management has converted the financial statements of
such subsidiaries, located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in their
respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited
these conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company’s management. Our opinion on
the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such
subsidiaries located outside India, is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion
adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding Company and audited by us.

Our apinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and
regulatory requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matters with respect
to our reliance on the work done by and the reports of the other auditors.

19.We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary, whose financial statements reflects

total assets of 1 lakh and net assets of ¥ 1 lakh as at 31 March 2022, total revenues of  Nil
and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ 1 lakh for the year ended on that date, as considered in
the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the
Group's share of net loss (including other comprehensive income) of ¥ 50 59 lakhs for the year
ended 31 March 2022, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of
one associate, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial
statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of the aforesaid subsidiary and associate, is based solely on such
unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the management, these financial statements are not material to
the Group.

Qur opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and
regulatory requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to
our reliance on the financial statements certified by the management. '

Chartered Accountants



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited on
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (cont’d)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

20. As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit and on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors, referred to in paragraph 18, on separate financial statements of
the subsidiaries, we report that the Holding Company, whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act have paid remuneration to their respective directors during the year in
accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule
V to the Act. Further, we report that three subsidiary companies whaose financial statements
have been audited under the Act have not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable in
respect of such subsidiary companies. Further, as stated in paragraph 19, financial statements
of one subsidiary company and one associate company, covered under the Act are unaudited
and have been furnished to us by the management, and as certified by the management, such
subsidiary company and associate company have not paid or provided for any managerial
remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not
applicable in respect of such subsidiary company and associate company.

" 21. As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the
Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act based
on the consideration of the Order reports issued by us and by the respective other auditors as
mentioned in paragraph 18 above, of companies included in the consolidated financial
statements and covered under the Act we report that there are no qualifications or adverse
remarks reported in the respective Order reports of such companies.

22. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information
of the subsidiaries and associate, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

a)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors;

The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
relevant hooks of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015;

The matters described in paragraph 4, paragraph 5 and paragraph 6 of the Emphasis of
Malter, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Group;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company, and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, and
the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and associate company,
nene of the directors of the Group companies and associate company, are disqualified as
on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect lo the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate company,

Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited on
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (cont’d)

and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 'Annexure
I1"wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion;

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial
statements and other financial information of the subsidiaries and associate:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consalidated financial position of the Group and its associate as detailed in Note
50 to the consolidated financial statements;

i, The Holding Cempany, its subsidiary companies and associate company did not
have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2022

iii, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies
and associate company, during the year ended 31 March 2022;

iv. a. The respective managements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and
associate company whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and associate company
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclaosed in note 85(v)
to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies, its associate
company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company,
or any such subsidiary companies, its associate company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

b. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies,
associate company whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries, associate company
respectively that, lo the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note
65(vi) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies, or its associate
company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding
Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Holding Company, or any such subsidiary companies, its associate company shall,
whether direclly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ('Ultimate Beneficiaries')
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries;
and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed by us and that performed by the auditors
of the subsidiaries and associate, as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our or other auditors’ notice that has caused us
or the other auditors to believe that the management representations under sub-
clauses (a) and (b) above cantain any material misstatement.

Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited on
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (cont’d)

v. The Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate company have not
declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2022

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Na.: 001076N/N500013

X "
" 0 LU 3 e

Neeraj Goel \©)
Partner )
Membership No.: 099514
UDIN: 22099514AJFWQAB537

Place: New Delhi
Date: 19 May 2022
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Annexure | o the Independent Aucditor’s Report of even date fo the members of CL
- Educate Limited on the consolidated financial-statements for the year-ended 31 March
2022 (cont'd)

Annexure |

List of entities inciuded in the Consolidated financial statements
- Holding Company

1. CL Educate Limited

Subsidiaries

Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited
Career Launcher Private Limited

lce Gate Educational Institute Private Limited
Kestone CL Asia Hub Pte. Limited

Kestone CL US Limited (step down subsidiary)

CL Educate {Africa) Limited {step down subsidiary)

S

Associate

1. Threesixiyone Degree Minds Censuiting Private Limited

Chartered Accounfants
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Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate
Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Annexure |l

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of CL Educate Limited (‘the
Holding Company') and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred
to as ‘the Group’) and its associate as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company, its
subsidiary companies and its associate company, which are companies covered under the Act, as
at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its
associate company, which are companies covered under the Act, are respansible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘'ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the
Company's business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial cantrals with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company, as
aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(‘the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company
as aforesaid.

Charlered Accountants



10.

Annexure 1l to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CL Educate
Limited on the consclidated financial statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2022 (cont’d)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial contrels with reference to financial staternents is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
poficies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detait,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of confrols, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of the subsidiary companies and
associate company, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company,
which are companies covered under the Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internai Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {'the Guidance Note")
issued by the ICAL

Other Matter

We did not audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as i
relates to one subsidiary company, which is a company covered under the Act,-whose financial
statements reflects tofal assets of ¥ 298.80 lakhs and net assets of  312.07 lakhs as at 31 March
2022, total revenues of  239.22 lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ 95.65 lakhs for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in so far as it relates to such subsidiary company has
been audited by other auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the management and our
report on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements for the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate
company, as aforesaid, under Section 143(3){i) of the Act in so far as it relates to such subsidiary
company is based solely on the reports of the auditors of such company. Our epinion is not modified
in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work done by and on the report of the
other auditor,

We did not audit the internal financial controis with reference to financial statements in so far as it
relates to one subsidiary which is a company covered under the Act, whose financial statements
reflects total assets of T 1 lakh and net assets of ¥ 1 lakh as at 31 March 2022, fotal revenues of #
Nil and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ 1 lakh for the year ended on that date; and-one associate
company, which is a company covered under the Act, in respect of which, the Group's share of het

Chaltered Accountanis



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate
Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (cont’d)

loss (including other comprehensive income) of ¥ 50.69 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2022 has
been considered in the consolidated financial statements. The internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of such subsidiary company and associate company, which are
companies covered under the Act, are unaudited and our opinion under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act
on adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate, which are companies
covered under the Act, is solely based on the corresponding internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements reports certified by the management of such companies. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, these financial
statements are not material to the Group. Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter
with respect to our reliance on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
reports certified by the management.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

N (z,ﬂd_

Neeraj Goel /

Partner .
Membership No.: 099514 ;
UDIN: 22099514AJFWQABL37

Place: New Delhi
Date: 19 May 2022

Chartered Accountants



CL Educate Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
CAN apsonents are in Rapees bacs, andess othermise stated)

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment property
Goodwill
Cther intangible assets
Intangibles under development
[nvestment in associates accounted using equity method
Financial assets

(i) Investments

{it) Other fnancial asses
Non-cuirent tax assets (nee)
Deferred tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
(i) Tnvestments
(i) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Bank halances other than (i) above
(v) Loans
(vi) Other financial assers
Other current assets

Total current assets
Disposal group - Assets held for sale
Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Liquity share capital

Other equity

Equity attributable to equity holders of patent
Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Notes

Lt B o

o= e

62

62
10
11
12
13

15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22

23

As at
Iarch 31, 2022

As at

arch 31, 2021

507.57 3,263.21
424.70 347,73
288 .41 294.16
1,008.89 1,008.89
3,491.98 2,595.58
387.51 359.13
T47.59 785.17
6G28.73 588.73
439,73 159.80
1,503.83 2,412.87
1,191.10 1,264.38
118.62 101.39
10,738.66 13,181.04
1,496.49 1,447.90
3,986.50 3,852.91
4,994.57 5,247.56
1,519.03 1,725.42
584.35 1,239.62
1,301.08 1,311.60
2,075.56 886.03
2,821.96 2,805.33
18,779.54 18,516.37
5,259.86 3,469.11
34,778.06 35,166.52
1,416.57 1,416.57
24.747.68 23281.82
26,164.25 24,698.39
(0.76) 12,50
26,163.49 24,710.89

(Conltnsed to wesd paze)

NEW DELHI

110044




CL Edueate Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless othermise stated)

(Contesived frome preitons page)

Liabilities
MNon-current liabilitics
Tinancal liabilities

(1) Borrowings

(1) Lensic liabilites
Peavisions
Deferred rax liabilities (net)
Other non-current linbilitics

Tatal non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Fmaneial liabilities
(1) Borrowings
(i1) Lease liabilines
(iir) T'rade payables
- total vutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; and
- total outstanding dues of ceeditors othee than micro and small enterpriscs
(iv) Othee financial liabiliries

Other current liahilitics

Provisions

Current tax liabilities (net)

Tuotal current liabilities

Total equity and liabilitics

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes 1 to 73 form an integeal part of these consolidated finaneial statements.

"This is eonsolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
LCAT Fiem registeation gu. OOI0TEN/NEOMILS

et "‘Af‘:‘i,f
Meeraj Goe

Partner
Membership No 099514

Mace: Gurugram, Hagyana

Dates May 19, 2022

Notes

an
3
32

33
34
35
in

\;J_(_a.\,;muiﬂ%
|

Asar

h 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2022 M

29239 566.85
35241 146,00
496,71 SHE.A3
- 9.40
197.41 10845
1,338.92 1,419.56
14 3,722.83
163.12 115.24
66,50 78.26
2,778.55 240188
712.67 87500
206995 182275
62.38 12.65
17.51 737
9,275.65 9,036.07

34,778.06 35,166,572

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of

CL Educate Limited
e -
s
G

Nikhil Mahajan autam Puri
Execeutive Dijrector and Vice-Chairman and
Group CEQ Enterprise Business Managing Dircctor
DA L DIN: 33548

Rachna Sharma
Company Sceretary
TC5T M. Mo: ALTTE0
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 19, 2022

Arjun Wadhwa
Chiel Finaneial Officer

ALY,
\\.'( J'./ “““{f?

-




CI. Eduecate Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Al anromits are in Repees lacs, mitless atbemuse stated)

Nuotes
Income
Revenue from operations 37
Other income 15
Taotal income
Lixpenses
Cost of matcrials consuned 39
Purchases of stock-in-trade 40
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 41
Fmployee benefits expense 42
Finance costs 43
Depreciation and amortisation expense 44
Service delivery expenses 45
Sales and Marketing Expenses 46
Orher expenses 47

Total expenses

Profit/ (loss) before share of profit/(loss) of equity accounted investees
and tax

Share of loss of equity accounted investees

Profit/ (loss) before tax (from continuing operations)

Tax expensc :

- Current tax

- Deferred tax

- Tax related to prior years
Total tax expense

Profit/ (loss) for the year (from continuing operations)
(Loss) /profit for the year (discountinued operations) 58
Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Income-tax relating to these items
Foreign Currency Translition Reserve
Income-tax relating to these items
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive loss for the year (comprising loss for the yeat and
other comprehensive loss for the year)

March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

20,746.09 18,230.90
870.29 959.67
21,616.38 19,190,567
477.44 269.17
2411 18.82
(60.64) 30.54
3,720.73 3,963.97
352.25 563.11
806.99 835.17
10,594.12 8,796.31
1,303.29 873,89
2,657.73 5314.48
19,856.02 20,665.46
1,760.36 (1,474.89)
(37.59) (4.94)
1,722.77 (1,479.83)
295.94 7.50
51.81 (249.14)
(4.86) 38,32
342.90 (203.32)
1,379.87 (1,276.51)
(0.81) 16.23
1,379.06 (1,260.28)
32,60 2147
(8.53) (538
66.03 37.34
(11.22) (9.40)
78.58 44,03
1,457.94 (1,216.25)

(Continned to pexct pate)




CL Educaic Linated
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year coded Marclh 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

AL Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(Clmntinsecd from previns peige)
Profit/ (luss) attributable from inuing operations to:
Crwvners of the company 139313 1,262.11)
INon-conralling mitercsts (13.26) (140
1.379.87 (1,276.51)
(Loss)/ prafit attributable from disconti & operativns
Chwners of the company (M181) 16.23%
MNaon-contealling merests = =
(0.81) 16.23
Other comprehensive income atributable to:
Owners of the company TH.88 J4.03
Nou-contrelling interests = .
7E.88 44.03
Toral compreficnsive income/ (loss ) for the year
Owwners af the company 1471200 (L200R5)
Mosi-controllng mierests {13.26) (A BRI
1,457.94 (1,216.25)

Eamings per equity share 44

Basic 487 (+51)

Dnluted 487 (4.3
Susmmary of signifeant accouniing policies 1
e secompanying notes L to 73 form an mtegral part of these consolidated Granci] satements.
This is consalidated smrement of profic and loss referred o m our epoct of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Boand of Diceciors of

Chartered Accountants | CL Educate Limited
1AL Firm repgsicition Mo, UHI0TEN /NE00013

Nowojdnd | N Mo

Neeraj Goel Mikhil Mahajan e Puri
Partnor Executive Director and Vies Chatrmvan and
Membership Nos09us1-4 Group CEQ Enterprise Business Managang Dicector
DN 0033404 DN UGER3E 48
\ /
Rachna Sharma Arjun Wadliwa
Company Sccretary Cluef Financial Orfieer
ICS1 M. Noz A17780
Place: Gurugram, TTaryana Place: New Delhi

Date: May 19, 2022 Dare May 19, 2022




CL Educate Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al cmoients are in Ragpees lacs, minless otbenpise statod)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit /(loss) before tax from:

Continuing operation 1,722.77 (1,479.83)
Discontinued operation ((L81) 16,23
Profit /(loss) before tax 1,721.95 (1,463.60)
Adjustment for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 206.99 435.17
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment {164.34) (0.98)
Provision for slow moving inventory/ written off 5.54 (38.76)
Finance costs 352.25 563.11
Share of profits of associates 37.59 4.94
Advances written off 47.18 47.00
Rent income on investment property (9.60) (11.10)
Liabilities no longer required written back (214.83) (352.94)
Unwinding of interest on security deposits (18.12) (22.80)
Unrealised foreign exchange (pain) / loss (net) (18.47) 86.82
Gain on of mutual fund (133.59) (136.57)
Interest Income (208.88) (172.55)
Tinance income on financial guarantees (1.85) (5.66)
Gain on lease modification (16.52) (15.06)
Faxpected credit loss /(gain) /written off 290.54 2.706.84
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,405.85 2,023.80
Movements in working capital

- Decrease in trade receivables 50.92 1,238.32
- (Increase)/Deerease in inventories (54.13) 41,10
- Decrease in loans 10,52 84,29
- (Inerease)/Decrease in financial assets (1,250.42) 280.55
- (Increase)/Decrease in current and non current asscts (2.12) 381.95
- Increase/ (Decrease) in other current and non-current liabilities 568.37 (300.30)
- Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade payables 364.91 (1,586.20)
- Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions (42.39) 26.9]
- Increase/(Decrease) in current and non current financial liabilides 0627.66 0.81
Cash flow generated from operations 2,679.17 2,191.22
Add: Income tax refund,/ (paid) (net) 659.92 423,70
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 3,339.00 2,614.92
Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including (2,097.03) (506.20)
payable towards property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1,476.40 89.81
Purchase of investment in subsidiaries and associates (40.01) 1.05
Investments in bank deposits (300.16) (84.70)
Maturity of bank deposits 675.50

Interest received 210,57 127.01
Rental income on investment property 9.60 L1.10
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (65.13) (361.93)




CL Educate Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Al amounis are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 Muarch 31, 2021
Continued from previous page
C. | Cash flow from financing activitics
Rl.'p::)'rnenl of ]rmg—lcrm 1_1[)1‘1‘(:\\'|n_gﬂ (2?4_46) {34—?.56)
Net increase in worling eapital borrowings (2,317.86) (142.00)
Payment of lease habilines (532.45) (618.94)
Interest paid (355.59) (578.35)
Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) (3,480.35) (1,686.85)
WNet increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (206.39) 566,14
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,725.42 1,150.28
Balance at the end of the year 1,519,03 1,725.42
(i) | Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- an eurrent account 1,372.98 1,405.27
Cheques/ dreafts on hand 2,70 32.47
Deposits with orginal maturities with less than 3 months 3 200,00
Cash on hand 143.35 B7.28
1,519.03 1,725.42

(i) The above Cash Tlow Statement has been prepared in accordance with the "Indireet Method" as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on "Cash low Statements'”

specified under Section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013, as applicable.

(iii) 'T'he above statement of cash flows should be read in conjuction with the accompanying notes 1 to 73,

Summary of significant accounting policics

The accompanying notes 1 to 73 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

‘This is consolidated statement of cashflows referred to in our report of even date,

lYor Wallter Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Fiem regisrmtirn No. U0T076N /N5 3

Noca)wm
e
Neeraj Goe

Partner

Membership No:099514

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
CL Educate Limited

VRS

Nikhil Mahajan ||

r—

Iixecutive Divector and
Group CEO Tnterprise Business

DI 000

3404
Lt
~

e

—

Place: Gurogram, 1laryana
Date: May 19, 2022

S
Rachna Sharma
Company Secrutary
TCST M. No.: AL1T780
DPlace: New Delhi

i
ey

Gautam Puri
Viee-Chairman and
Managing Director
DIN: 60033548

Arjun Wadhwa
Chief Financial Officer
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CL Educate Limited
Summaty of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

1. Cotporate Information

(@

1, Bducate Lunited (the ‘Holding Company’) is 4 company domiciled 1n Tndia, with its regisrered office
situated at Plow No.9A, Sector 27A, Mathuta Road, Faridabad, Haryana 121003 and corporate office at A-
45, Mohan Cooperative Industrial Area, Mathura Road, New Delhi - 110044, 'The Holding Company was
incorporated 1 India on April 25, 1996 to conduct various educational and consuliing programmes. The
Holding Company is providing education and test preparation training programmes which include tuitions
to schiool smdents and coaching to aspitants for a vasiety of entrance examinatdons both at the school and

graduate / post gracuate | svels.

The Holding Company’s equaity shares are listed with Bombay Stock Exchange Linuted (BSLY) and National
Stock Exchange (NSE) in India. o

The Holding Company along with its subsidiaries und its associate has been collectively hereinafter referred
to as the ‘Group’.

A, General Information and compliance with WD A3
Statement of compliance:

I'hese consolidated finangial statements (“CFS”) of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Tndian
Accounting Srandard (“Ind AS”) and comply with requircments of Ind AS notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act?), read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standaids) Rules,
2015 as amended from time to time, stipulation: contained in Schedule 111 (Revised) and othei
pronouncements/ provisions of applicable laws.

These CES have been prepated using the significant accounting policies and measurement basis summarised
below. These accounting policies have been used consistently throughout all periods presented in these
consolidated financial statements, unless stated otherwise

The CI'S have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilitics whicl
have been measuted at fair value:

i Derivative finaacial instruments; ] o . _

ii. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy |.'.:g:ﬁ:di;1g
financial instruments);

iii. Defined benefit plans- plan asscts measured at fair value; and

v, Share based payments.

"The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classificatios. Au
asset is treated as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

i Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

ii. Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

i, Expected to be realised wirhin twelve months after the reporting period; or

1. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to sctide a liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets ave clagsified as non-current.




CL Bducaic Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Cuonsalidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

A liability 1s current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

1. it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

i, It is held primarily for the putpose of trading,

1, It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting petiod; or

Iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-curtent assets and liabilities.
Py ' Sy : - . £ . . . " .

I'he opetating cycle is the time berween the acquisition of assets for processing and lis tealisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Groap has identified twelve months as iis operating cycle.

The CES of the Group have been presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also its functional currency and
all amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
lacs as per the requirement of Schedule 111 to the Act, unless otherwise stated.

(ii) Amended standards adopted by the Group

(iii)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Plase 2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 104 and
Ind AS 116

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank
offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nealy risk-free interest 1ate (RFR).

The amendments include the following practical expedients:

A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by
the reform, to be tieated as changes to a floating interest rate, equivalent to a movement in 2 market rate of

interest

Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued

Provide temporaty relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RIR
instrument is designated as a hedge of a 1isk component :

Ind AS 116: COVID-19 related rent concessions

MCA issued an amendment to Ind AS 116 Covid-19- Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021 (o
update the condition for lessees to apply the relief to a reduction in lease payments originally dus on ox befoie
June 30, 2022 from June 30, 2021. The amendment applies to annual reporting petiods beginning on ox after
April 1, 2021.

Y'hese amendments did not have any naterial impact on the financial statements of the Group.
Standatrds issued but not yet effective

The Minisery of Corpotate Affaiis (“MCA”) vide ite notification dated March 23, 2022 has eotificd

Compauies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 to further amend the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Amendments have been made to the following standards.
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Amendment to Ind AS 16, Propetty, Plant and Equipment

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) vide notification dated March 23, 2022, has issued an
amendment to Ind AS 16 which specifies that an entity shall deduct from the cost of an ttem of property,
plant and equipment any proceeds recetved from selling items produced while the entity 1s preparing the asset
for its intended use,

Amendment to Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contin gent Assets

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide notification dated March 23, 2022, has issued an
amendment to Ind AS 37 which specifies that the cost of fulfilling a contract comprises: the incremental
costs of fulrilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts,

Amendment to Ind AS 103 “Business Combination” - Reference to Conceptual Framework

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘DICA”) vide notification dated March 23, 2022, has issued an
amendments to Ind AS 103 which specify that to qualify for recognition as pait of applying the acquisition
method, thz identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and
Labilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards
(Conceptual Framewonk) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date.
These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103 — Business Combinations. The
Group does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA ”) vide notification dated March 23, 2022, has issued an
amendment to Tnd AS 109 which clasifies that which fees an entity should include when it applics the ‘10%’
test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or received
between the eatity (the berrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the
lender on the other’s behalf. The amendments listed above will be effective on or after April 1, 2022 and are
ot expected to significantly affect the current or future periods. - :

B. Basis of conselidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries
and associate. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

a) Power over the investee (Le. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee),

b) Exposure, o1 rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
¢) Theability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
Genezally, there is a presumption that a majotity of voting rights result in control. 'I' support this presutnption

and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the G toup considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an inves tee, incliding:
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a) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
b) The rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
¢) The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights; and

d) The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of  the
other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the thiee elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence, ie., the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but not conirol or joint control
over those policies.

The following consolidation procedurés are adopted;
Subsidiary:

a) Combine like items of asscts, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiaties. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiaty are based on the amounts of the assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date;

b) Offset (climinate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion
of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill; and

c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows refating to
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are
recognised in asscts, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Ind AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ applies
to temporaty differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses tesulting from intragroup
transactions.

Profit or loss and cach component of Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) are attributed to the equity holders
of the patent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

e Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
o Derecognises the carrying amount of any noncontrolling interests;
¢ Detecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

e Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

e Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

® Recognises any surplus or deficit in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss;

® Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit o loss or retained

earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or

liabilities ﬁ} ATE
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Associate:

Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method, alter initially being recognised at cost in the
consalidated balance sheet. When a member of the Group transacts with an associate of the Grouap, profits and
losses from transactions with the associate are recognised in the CFS only to the extent ofinterests in the associate
that are not related to the Group.

I'he carrying amount of the investment 18 adjusted to recogmse changes in the Group's share of wiet assets of the
asseciate since the acquisiticn date, Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the cacrying amount of the
L o3 ; : :

investiment.

The Consolidated Statement of Profit and Lass reflects the Group’s share of thé cesalis of operations of the
associate. Any change in QOCT of those investces is presented as patt of the Group’s OCL Tu addition, whea there
has been a change recognised directly in the equiiy of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest i the associate. The aggregale
of the Group’s share ol profit ox loss of an associate is shown on thie face of the Consolidated Statemznt of Profit

and Loss.

After application of the cquity method, the Group detetmines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on its investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group caleulates the

- amouat of impaitment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and ifs carrying vaiue
- = ) el

and then recogniscs the loss as ‘Share of profit ot an ascociate’ in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Upaon loss of significant influetice over the associate, the Group measures and recogunises any-retzinéd investiment
at irs fair value. Any difference between the-carrying-amousit of tlie associate upon loss of significarit and the Faif
value of the retained iuvestment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit

and Loss. ; ;
On acquisition of control over previously owned associates, the Group re-measures its previously held equity
interest in the associates at the acquisition date fair valuc and tne difference, if any, be tween che catrfing amount
and the fair value is recognised in the Consolidaied Statement of Profit and Loss.

Goodwillis generally' computed as the difference between the sum of consideration transferred {ineasured at the
fair value) the non-contrelling interest ("INCT”) in the acquire and the net of the acquisition date anmounts of the
identifiable assets dequired and the labilitics assumed. ’ 3

Significant accounting policies
Fair value measurcments
" The Group measures financial instruments at fair value which is the price that would be'received 1o sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between independent market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the

asset of transfer the liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset o1 liability, or
« lathe absence of a principal matket, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabil ty.

All assets nud liabilities for which fairvalue is measured or disclosed inthe financial statements are catsporised
_within the fair value higrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inpur that is significaut to the
% (v )
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level i - Quoted (unadjusted) matket prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - Valuation techniques fox which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value mr.:lsurtt‘ncnr
is directly or indirectly observable; and
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Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpur that is significant to the fair value measutement
is unobservable,

The Group uses valuation techniques thar are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable mputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs. For assets and liabilitics that are recognised in the balance sheet at fair value on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred berween levels m the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the faic value hierarchy as
explained above.

Kevenue

Revenue 1s recognised u pon transfer of control of promised product or services to custotier in an amounrit
that reflect the consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for those product or services
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the transaction price, net of
any taxes/duties and discounts.

The Group eatns revenue from Educational and teaining business and sales of text books.

Revenue from services

Revenue in respect of educational and training programme received from students is 1ecognised in profit and
loss ayer the period of contract in proportion to the stage of completion of the services at the reporting date,
The gtage of completion is assessed by reference to the curricnlum. Fee is recorded at invoice vulue, net of
discounts and taxes, if any.

Revenue as an agent

The Group derives its revenue from event and managed manpower services, When the Group determines
that the nature of ifs promise, is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services itself
(Le. entity is the principal), then it recognises the revenue earned as the gross amount of consideration,
However, where the Group promise, is to atrange, for the customer to provide goods/services as an agent
then revenue is recognised only to extent of commission/markup/charges earned by it. In such cases the
Group does not control the goods and services provided to a customer. The indicators evaluated by the
Group to conclude if it is an agent are the following:

(a) That another party is primarily responsible for fulfilling the contract;
(b} The Group does not have any inventory risk

(¢) The Group does not have discretion in establishing prices for the other patty’s goods ot services and,
therefore, the benefit that the Gioup can receive from those goods or services is limited;

(d) the Group’s consideration 1s 1n the form of a commission / service charge or mackup; and

(¢) the Group is not exposed to credit risk for the amount receivable fromi a customer in exchanee for the

other party’s goods or services.
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Revenue from sale of text books

Revenue from Sale of ‘Lesthooks is vecognized at the pomt of tme upon transfer of control of promised
goods to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group expects to ceceive in exchange
for those poods i.e. when it 1s probable that the entity will receive the economic benefits associaied with the
transaction and the related revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognized at the fair value of the
consideration received or recefvable, which is generally the contracted prit:e,- net of any taxes/duties and
discounts considering the impact of vanable consideration.

Revenne is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses and price concessions, if any, as specified in the contract
with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers,

In case of test prepatation services, sale of text books is recognised at the time of receipt of payment on
account of education and training program provided by the Group and is recorded net of discounts and

taxes, if any.

Other operating income

Revenue in respect of start-up fees from franchisecs is recognised on performing a contractually agreed
assignment over a petiod of time, whether during a single period or over more than one period as per agreed
terms of the franchise agreement.

Coniract Balances
Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
financial assets in section ix in Financial instruments,

Contract Liabilities (Unearned e

A contract liahility is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Amounts billed and
recetved o1 recoverable prior to the reporting date for services and such services or part of such services are
to be petformed after the reporting date are recorded as contract liabilitics as per the provisions of the Ind
AS-115 and shown in other current liabilities.

Qther income

i Income f[rom advertising is tecognised on stage of completion basis as per the terms of the agreement.

i, Rental income from investment property is recognised as part of revenue from operations in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease except where the rentals are structured to increase
in line with expected general inflation.

Interest income
Interest income on time deposits and inter corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that evactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
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(i)

(iv)

Dividend income is recognised in profit and loss on the date on which the Group’s right 1o receive payment
is established.

Inventoties

Inventories comprising of traded goods are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost
of inventorics is based on the first in, first out formula,

The Cost comprises all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present
location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less estimated costs necessaty to make the sale. T'he compatison of cost and net realisable valie is made on
an item-by-item basis,

Property, plant and equipment
Measurement at recognition:

Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost comptises the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalisation criteria are met and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in artiving at the purchase price. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:

a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only
if it increased the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance. All other expenses on existing assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure
and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the period
during which such expenses ate incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
value over their useful life using straight line method, and is recognised in the consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods
are as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule 1T of the Act.

Property, plant and equipment Useful lives (in years)
Leaschold land Over lease period
Building 60
Furniture and fixtures 8-10
Plant and machinery 15
Office equipment 5
Vehicle 8-10
Computer equipment 3
Computer servers and networks 6
Leasehold improvements Lesserof 3_}/_,?@:5‘_01' petiod of lease
KCRTE
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™

(vi)

Frechold land is not depreciated.

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimartes of useful
lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets,
Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basss from the date the
assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is
provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and equipment as the case may
Le.

Depmcmnon method, nseful lives and residual values ar ¢ reviewed at each hmm‘nl vear-end, and changes, if
any, are wronured fo' pj_t‘lG]Jt.Cll‘. ely.

Reclassification to investinent property

When the usc of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the property is reclassified
as investment property at its carrying amount on the date of reclassification.

Detecognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon
disposal ot when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceads or amount of
security dcpomt adjusted and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

Investment pioperty

Investment propertics are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to inifial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

The Group depreciates building component of investnient property over 60 years from the date of original
purchase on straight line basis in accordance with Schedule IT to the Act.

Theugh the Group measutes investment property using cost-based measutement, the fair value of investiment
property ie disclosed in the notes. Fair value is determined by an independent valuer who hiplds a recognised
and relevant professional qualification and bas recent experience in the relevant location and categosy of the
investment property being valued. Investment properties are derccognised either wheu they have been
disposed of orwhen they ate permanently withdrawn from use and no futare economic benefit is expected
from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assct
is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition. In determining the amount of consideration
from the derecognition of investment property the Group considers the effects of vatiable consideration,
extstence of a significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the
buyer (if any).

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use.
In;an_gible assets
]11tang1bl(, qsscts -u.quu»=d separatrely are mfasmc‘d on initial tecognition at cost. Fhr‘ cosl oﬁn[.mm' e assets

acqun cd in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
inrangible assets are cagried ai cost less any gecymulated smoztisation and accumulated impairment losses,

Y,
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Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed {or impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset inay be impaired. The amortsation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed ar least at the end of each
reporung period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of fumre
cconomic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and arc treated as changes in accounting estimates,

The amortisation expense on inta ngible assets with finire lives is recognised in the consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss unless such expendirure forms patt of cartying valuc of another asset.

During previous year endad March 31, 2021, the Group has started providing digital delivery of products and
services. Accordingly, useful life of various assets has been reassessed and revised by the management. The
group lias accounted this as a chunge in estimate and impact raken prospectively in accordarce with principles
of Tnd AS 8" Accoundng Policies, Changes in Accounting stimates and FHrrors™".

Arnortisation i3 caleulated over their estmated useful lives nsing the straight-line incthod.

The reassessed usclul lives of intangible assets are as follows:

(vii)

Intangible assets Useful Life (in |
years)

Software 5

Websire 5 -

=

!

Content development

Non-compete fees

3 and Lalf

Latellectual property rights 15
| CAT online module =~ ° 13
Mglting POT ___ T ]
1QM s
Aspiraton Al ) 10 =
| Online Video Content 5
Wain Connect 10

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.c., at the date the recipient obtains.contml) or when no
futare economic benefits ate expected from its use or disposal. Any gain ot loss arising upon derecognition
of the asser (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the consolidated Statemnent of Profit and Loss. when the asset is derecognised.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and-the related
expenditute is reflected in profit or Joss in the period in which the expenditure is incurted. Development
expenditure is capiralised as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the expenditure can be
meazrrea reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future cconemic benefits
are probable, and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete developmesnr and to use or
sell the ‘asser. Otherwise, it is recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any
accumvlated impairment losses. ‘

Business combination and goodwill
Businces combinations arve accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisiticn is measured
as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the wnount of

atiy poa-controliing interests in the acquiree.

At Lhe acquisiticn date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognisal au thel

acquisition dafe fair values. For this pucposs, the liabilities assumed include contingent liahilities representiag
EIE . - . i TS ' ' . A . e
preserit obligation aad they ate measured a1 their acquisition fair values irrespective: of the fact that outflew

of tesources embodying econcmic benefits 15 not probable. *
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(viii)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the fnancial assers and labilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

Any contingent consideration 0 be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the
scope of Ind AS 109 Tinancial [nstruments’ (‘Ind AS 109°), is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. If the contingent consideration is not
within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measu red in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred over
the net identifiable assets acquired asid liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in
excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all
of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
alocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefir from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilitics of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash genceating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annuvally, or more
trequently when there is an indicition that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its cartying amount, the impaitment loss is allocated first to teduce the cartying
ameunt of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the il

Any impainment loss for goodwill is recognised in the Consolidated Statement” of Profit and Loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Income taxes

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in tespect
of current tax and-deferred tax.

Curtent income tax

Cutrent income tax is measured at the amount expected td be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with
the Lnicome-rax Act, 1961 and rules thereunder. Cuzrent income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected fo be recovered from ot paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount ate those thatare enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in OCI or in
equity).

Cuttent tax items are recognised in correlation to the undetlying transaction cither in OCI or directly in
equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and Jiabilities and their book bases. Deferred tax Habilities are recognised for all temporary differences, the
casry (orward of unused fax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assels are recognised to the
extent-that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utllised. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the teporting date.
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(ix)

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets ate re-assessed at each reporting date and are tecognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities ate offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (“MAT”) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the relevant members of the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified
period. Such asset is reviewed at each reporting period end and the adjusted based on circumstances then
prevailing.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing fot an asset is required, the

Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s tecovetable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (“CGU?”) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaited and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded Group’s or
other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash
flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/ forecasts, the Group extrapolates
cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent yea.s, unless
an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the
matket in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventorics, are recognised in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to deternine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist ot have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group
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estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. ‘The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asser does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profir and Loss unless the asset is carried
ar a revalued amount, 1n which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract thar gives rise Lo a financial assct of one entity wnd o {inanciai
liability or equity instrument of another entity. : .

Financial assets

Litial recoppition qud mreasmreprent

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at [air value through profit or loss (“FVITL”), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset.

For putpnses of subscquent measurement, financial assets are classified as follows:

Debt instrumenrs at amortised cost

A “debr instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost where the asset is held within a business model
whose objective 1s to hold assets for collecting con'ractual cash flows; and contractual terms of the agset
give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of princival and inrerest.

*“After initizl tmeasurement, such financial assets ate subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

EIR method. Amoztised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The interest income from these {inancial assets is

‘included in finance income in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from

impairment are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 'This category generally
applics to trade and other receivables,

Deby instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cashflows and for selling the financial assets, where the
cash-flow represent solely payments of principal and interest, are mcasured at fair vaie through other
comprehénsive income (“FVOCI”). The Group has not designated any debt instrumenc in this category.

Debt instruments ut fair value through profit ot loss

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (“"FVTPL”) is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt
instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categotisation as at amortized cost or as TVTQCI, is
classified as at FVTPL. A

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument which otherwise meets amortized cost
or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVIPL. However, such clection is allowed only if doing so reduces or
climinates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘acconnting mismatch’).

Debe instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Consolidated Statement ef Profit 2nd Loss. The Group has not designated anv delit
instrument in this category. : :

S
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Lquity jnstruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combinations” applies are Tnd AS classified as at FVTPL. Equity instruments
included within the 'VTPL catepory are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Tor all other equity instruments, the Group may malic an irrevocable elecion to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair values. The Group makes such eclection on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

. 1f the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the

instramnent, excluding dividends, are recognised in the QCI. There is no recycling of the amourts from

7 T S DR, ¢ laa - o CavESE ] . A = . 3
GCL o protit or 10ss, even o sale of invesunent. However, the Group may transfer the comulative gain
or loss within equtty.

De-pevopnilion

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to reccive cash flows from the asset have
expited or the Group has transferred its rights to receive the contractual cash flows from the asset it a
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred.

[pairment of finaneial assets

The Group measutes the Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) associated with its asscts based on historical
trends, indusery prdctices and the general business environment in which it operates. The impairment
methodology: applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit visk. ECL
ihpairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as incoime/ expense
‘1 the Consolidared Statement of Profit and Loss under the head ‘other expenses'.

Financial Habilities

Luitial recopnition qud weasurenieit

Finaucial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedlge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. g )

The Group’s financial liahilities include tiade and other payables, loans and bouewings including bank
overdrafts and detivative financlal instmments.

S ng.rggﬂm! TEATHIEER!

The measutement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

a)

Financial liabilities at FN'TPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading a nd financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the neat term.

‘This category includes derivative financizal instmments entered into by the Group that are not desiznated
. - . ik . i ) (=]
as hedging instruments in hedge relafionships as defined by Ind AS 109. :
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Financial Eabilittes designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated
as such at the mitial date of recognition, and only if the critetia in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVITPL, fair value gains/ losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except
for those attributable to changes in own credit risk, which are recognised in OCI. These gains/ loss are
not subsequently trans ferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. -

b) Hinancial liabilities at amortised cost

A fter initial recognition, financial labilities designated at amortised costs are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Pro fit and Loss
when the liabilities are detecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amottised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
-osts that ate an integral part of the EIR. The amoztisation is included as finance costs in the Sratement
of Profit and Loss.

p-reca pILON

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective catrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetiing of, financial instriprienis

Financial assets and financial liabilities ate offset and the net amount is repozrted in the consolidated Balance
sheet i€ there'is a currently enforceable legal tight to offsct the recognised amounts and there is an intention
£ settle on a net basis, to realise the assets aund settle the labilities simultaneousiy.

Detivative financial instruments

Derivatives ate initially recognised at fair value on the date of executing a detivative contract and are
subsequently remeasuted to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilitics when the fair value is negative.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss immediately, topether with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset
or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

Leases
The Group as a lessce

"The Group enters into an arrangeiment for lease of buildings. Such arrangements are generally for a fixed
period but may have extes \sion or termination options. Ln accordance with Ind AS 116 — Leases, at inception
of the contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as “a contract,
or patt of a contrict, that conveys the right to control the use an asset (the underlying asset) for a petiod of
time in exchange for consideration’.

To assess whether a contract conveys the tight to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses

whether:

) The contract invoives the use of an idenrified assct — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. IF the
supplier has a substantive substitution tight, theis the asset is not identilied;

b) The Group has the right to obiezin sabstantially all of the economic benefits from use of the assct
throughout the period of use; and :
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) The Group assesses whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the assct is used
throughout the period of use. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Group has elected
not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease
component.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at ot hefore the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the undetlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site
on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses (unless such right of use assets fulfills the requirements of Ind AS 40 - Investment Property
and is accounted for as there under), if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability, The
right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter
of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. Right-of-use asset are tested for impairment whenever there
is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not pail at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease oz, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comptise the following:

a) Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

b) Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

¢) Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

d) The exercise price under a purchasc op tion that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments
in an optional renewal petiod if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and
penalties for carly termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. It is remieasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change
in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When
the lease liability is remeasuted in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, ot is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero, as the case may be.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property and lease
labilitics as a separate line item in the standalone financial statements of the Group.

The Group has elected not to apply the requitements of Ind AS 116 - Leases to short-term leases of all assets
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The
lease payments associated with these leases ate recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Disposal group — Assets held for sale
Non-cutrent assets classified as held for sale are presented separately in the Consolidated Balance sheet and

measured at the lower of their carrying amounts immediately prior to their classification as held for sale and
their fair value less costs to sell. Once classified as held for sale, the assets are not subject to depreciation or
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smortisation. Any gain or loss arises on temeasureme=nt or sale is included in the Consolidated Starement of

Profic and T.oss.

1f an enuty has classified an asset {or dispos al group) as held fox sale, but the held-for-sale critertza as specificd

r standard are no lopger mel, the en tity shall cease io classify the asset (or disposal groun} as held! for sale.

The Grodp MERNULES 4 0a-S1reedi asset fhut ceases to be classified as held foi gale (or conses 1o bejucledsd
in % disposal grovg clasyified 25 held for sale} ar the lower of:
wts eurrying amoiat belore the asset {or disposzl group) was classified as Leld Gor saty, anasted Gor il

denreciation, amortisation ov e raluations rhat wiould have been recognised had the assce (or dieposal proaz)

L netbeen cligsified as held for sale; and
s tocoverabie i neant atthe dats of the subsequizin declsion not to sell. v - T s i, g

v, b
(sidi)

dmployee begizfits - - .o 0 : i o

Contriintion i propident and otber Jionds
Retirement benefir-in the Gim.of provideet fund is a-defined contriburian. scheine. The Greap has.wo
cbligation, other thar the contribution payabie to the provident fund. The Geonp 1ecognises contributioa
payable tothe provident ford sclieme as an-expense, wlicn an employee renders the ralared service. 16 the
contiibution payable wrlisehéme fot service roceived before the consolidated Ealpuee shieet date exnceeds
the contribuiion alieads paid; the defcir payable 1o hiescheme is recognised as' Habiigalter ¥ e
dontribution already paid: fithe contiibutitn already paid exceeds the contribution duefolséivizes1o¢d
before the halincé shéer dite, then excess 13 recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-paymant vl
lead to, for sxample, a sedittiondn futare paymert ora cash rerund,

i (i

Caraluly

Gratuity 1 2 defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined sing the projected unit credit method. The Group recognises termination heneflt as 4 liahiliry
'.1_1_"1_d an expenee when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an
O:thﬂ()“""()f resoutces embodying economic betielits will Be required to settle the ohligation and a reliable
estiimate can beniadée of tl‘lnc amouat of the obligation. If the termination benefits fall doe more than twelve
months aftes the bularice shete date, they are measurcd at presént value of futiire cash fows using the discount
fate deteitnined byirelereitce to market yields at the balance sheét date on governmesit bonds. ~—+ "< 7

Re-measurements, comprising qcn’ia’rial’ -g’ai;is-and logsts, the effect of the asset r‘:ci]ing, ekcludiig amounts
included in nef interest on'the net'defined benefit lizbility and the return on plan assets (excluding amouhis
included in net intérest on the net-defined benelit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet

with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other Comprehensive Income (“OCL”) m
the petiod in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit oz loss in subsequent periods.

Dast setvice costs ate recognised in Consolidated Stalement of Profit and Loss on the carlier of:
+" The date of thé plan amendment ot cuttailment, and
«  The date that the Group recognises related restructuring cost

Net inteest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability oy esset. i

The Group recognises the followitsg clianges in the aer defined benefit obligation a3 an expense in the

Consolidated Statement of Profir and Loss:

+ Service costs COMPrising cuHcnT-service costs, past-service costs, gains and Josaes on carfailments angd
non-roufine setiiernents; and ' "o ¥

o Net interest cxpense or income

NEW DELHI'
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Cuompensated absences

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-tern
employee benefir which are co mputed based on the actuartal valuation using the projected unit credit method
at the period end. Actuarial pains/losses are immediately taken to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss and are not deferred. The Group presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet to the
exrent it does not have an unconditional right o defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting
date. Where Group has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a petiod
beyond twelve months, the balance is presented as a non-current liability.

Accumnulated leave, which is expected to be uiilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short tevm
employee benefit. The Group measures the expested cost of such absences as'the additional amount that it
expects to pay as a result of the v nused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

All other employee benefits payabie Javailable within twelve months of rendering the service ave <lassified as
shori-terin employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, etc. are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Share-based payments

‘T'he Employee Stock Option Scheme (‘the Scheme?) provides for the grant of equity shares of the Group to
its employees. The Scheine provides: that employees are granted an option to acquite equity shares of the
Group that vests i a.graded manner. The options may be exercised within a specified period. The Group
uses the grant date fait value to account for its equity settled share based payment plans granted (o employee,
with a cortesponding increase in cquity over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled
to the awards. Compensation cost is measured using independent valudtion by Black-Scholes ‘model
Compensation cost; if any is amortised over the vesting perio E

Foreign exchange'transactions and translations

[nitial recognition

Foreign currency Liansactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying the foieign cutrency
amount of exchange rate between the reporting currency and foreign currency at the date of transaction.

Forteign cutrency monetaty assets and liabilities outstanding as at balance sheel date are réstated/iranslated
using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilitics which are
measured in ferms of historical cost denomination in foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate
at the date of rransaction except for non-monetary item measured at fair value which are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when fair value is determined.

Eychange difference atising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the Group’s monetary
itemns at rates different from those at which they initially recorded during the year or reported in previous
financials statement (other than those relating to fixed assets and other long texm monetary assets) are
recognised as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.

Foreign operations: )
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations ate translated into INR the functional cucrency of the Group,
at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated
into INR ar the exchange rates at the dates of the transaction or an average rate if the average rate
approximates the actual rafe at the date of the transaction.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and
short-term deposits with an original mavurity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 4 result of a past
everit, it is probable that an outflow of resoutces embodying economic benefits will be required to sctde the
obligatior: and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, nader an insurance contracr, the reimbussement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually cerrain, The expense relating to
4 provision is presented in the Cont solidated Statement of Profit and Loss, net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time valu¢ of money is inaterial, provisions are discounted using a current pre-fax rate
thar teflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time 1s recognised as a finance cost.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are repor tcd in a manner LUIl‘al'\tEilt with the internal reporting provided ro the r‘lu\.f
operating decision maker. :

&
In accordance with Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, ‘the operating segments used o present segment
111f0r1n.mun are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Group’s Manzgement to allocate
resotrces to the segments and assess their performance.

Segment profit is used fo measure performance as management believes that such information 1s the most
relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these
industries. [nter-segment pricmg is determined on an arm's length basis.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further:

I. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the
segment. & T i

12

Expenses that are ditectly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining
the segment result. Fixpenses which relate to the Group as a whole and not allocqble to segmeuta
are included under unallowable expenditure,

3. Tncome which relates to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in
unallowable income.

4. Segment asscts and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments,
Unallowable assets and labilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Group as a
whole and not allocable to any segment.

The Board of Director(s) ate collectively the Group’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maket” or “CODNM within
the meaning of Ind AS 108.
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Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non—occurtence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Group ot a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be requited to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there
is a Hability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize
a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. Contingent assels are only
disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity.

Earnings per shate

Basic catnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events, other than
conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares ontstanding without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/(loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements.
Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on management’s experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Uncettainty about these assumptions and cstimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the catrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In patticulat, the Group has identified the following areas where significant judgements, estimates and
assumptions are required. Further information on each of these areas and how they impact the various
accounting policies are described below and also in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Changes
in estimates are accounted for prospectively,

i) Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

a) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may atise from the ordinary course of business in telation to claims against the
Group, including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be
resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant
judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

b) Recognition of deferred tax assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability
that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax
loss carry-forward can be utilised. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact
of any legal or economic limits or uncertainties in vatious tax jurisdictions.

- /f;
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ii) Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the furure and other key sources of eslimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assels and liabilities within the next financial year, are deseribed below. The Group based its assumptions
and estimates on paramerters available when the financial statetnents were prepared. BExisting
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market change
or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflecred in the assumptions
when they occut.

a) Useful lives of tangible/intangible assets

The Group reviews its estimaie of the uselul lives of tangible/intangible assets at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets.

b) Defined benefit obligation

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such
obligation are determined using actuatial valnations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. In view of the
complexitics involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

¢) Inventories

The Group estimates thé net realisable valnes of nventories, taking’ into account the most -reliable
evidence available at each reporting date, The future realisation of these inventorics may be affected by
future technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future selling prices.

d) DBusiness combinations

The Group uses valuation icchniques when determining the fair values of certnin assets and liabilities
acquired in a business combination. ' :

¢) Impairment of non-financial assets and goodwill

In assessing impairment, Group estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating units
based on expected future cash flows and uses an intetest rate to discount them. Hstimation uncertainty
relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.

f) Fair value measurement of firancial insttuments

When the fair values of financial assers and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required inestablishing fair values.
Judgeiments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit 1isk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

RSy ATE
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CL Educate Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(AN aneorints are in Rupees lacs, witless athenvise stated)

4. Right-of-use assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount Right-of-use assets Total

Gross carrying amount as on April 1, 2020 1,379.76 1,379.76
Additions during the year _ _
Disgitssals (91.04) (91.04)
Adjustment on account of termination / modification of lease (498.77) (498.77)
Reclassification from leasehold land (refer note 3) - =
Gross carrying amount as on March 31, 2021 789.95 789.95
Additions during the year 451.67 451.67
Disposals = -
Adjustment on account of termination / modification of lease (59.13) (59.13)
Reclassification from leasehold land (refer note 3) (182,79) (182.79)
Gross carrying amount as on March 31, 2022 999.70 999,70
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at April 1, 2020 431.91 431.91
Depreciation for the year 142,59 142.59
Adjustment on account of termination / modification of lease (132.28) (132.28)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 442,22 442.22
Depreciation for the year 132.78 132.78
Adjustment on account of termination / modification of lease 2 4
Balance as at March 31, 2022 575.00 575.00
Net Carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 347.73 347.73
Net Carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 424.70 424,70
Note :

During the previous year, the Group recognised right of use assers as per Ind AS 116 "Leases" (Refer note 50)

(This space bas been intentionafly left blank)

NEW DELHI




CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(AN aumonntr are in Rupees lacs, miless othenpise stated)

5. Investment property

A. Reconciliation of carrying amount

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Cost or deemed cost

Balance at the beginning of the year 323.54 323.54
Additions during the year - }
Balance at the end of the year 323.54 323.54
Accumulated depreciation

Balance at the beginning of the year 2938 23.63
Depreciation for the year i 5.75
Balance at the end of the year L ] 29.38
Carrying amounts 288.41 294,16

B. Amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss for investment property

Rental income 9.60 11.10
Profit from investment properties before depreciation 9.60 11.10
Depreciation 5.75 5.75
Income from investment property 3.85 5.35

C. Measurement of fair value

Investment property 770.00 770.00
770.00 770,00

D. Estimation of fair values

The Group obtains independent valuations for each of its investment propetty by external, independent property valuers, having
appropriate recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued.

Fair matket value is the amount expressed in terms of money that may reasonably be expected to be exchanged between a willing buyer
and a willing seller, with equity or both. The valuation by the valuer assumes that Company shall continue to operare and run the assets

to have economic utility.

Valuation technique:

Under the market comparable method (or market comparable approach), a property’s fair value is estimated based on comparable
transactions. The martket comparable approach is based upon the principle of substitution under which a potential buyer will not pay
more for the property than it will cost to buy a comparable substitute property. In theory, the best comparzble sale would be an exact
duplicate of the subject property and would indicate, by the known selling price of the duplicate, the price for which the subject
property could be sold. The unit of comparison applied by the Company is the price per square metre (sqm).

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurement for the investment property has been categorised as a Level 2 fair value based on the inputs to the
valuation technique used.

The valuation techniques and the inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 2 of the fair value hicrarchy is as

Valuation technique Obesrvable inputs
Market method Guideline rate (Per sq. m.) Similar piece of land rate (Per
sq. m.)

Investment property mainly consists of buildings in Mumbai & Punc. During the period, Company has assessed that there is no
significant change in fair value of investment property and accordingly Company has considered the fair valuation of investment
propetty is in accordance with valuation report done for the year 2019-20.




CL Bducate Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
CAH amusnis are i Rupees lacs, aitess athemise stated)

6. Goodwill

Reconciliation of carrying amount

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at the end of the year 1,0008.89 1,008.89
Total 1,008.89 1,008.89

6.1 Impairment tests for Goodwill

Goodwill is monitored by Management at the level of operating segments identified in note 58,

For the purpose of impairment testing, poodwill is allocated to the Group's operating divisions which represent the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes, which is not higher than the Group's aperating segments. The aggregate careying amounts of goodwill alloeared to
segments arve as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
EdTech 895.08 895.08
MarTech 113.81 113.51
1,008.89 1,008.89

6.2 Significant estimate: key assumptions used for value-in-use

The group tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable amount of a cash gencrating unit (CGU) is determined based on
value-in-use ealculativns which requive the use of assumptions. The calealations use cash Bow projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below. These growth rates are consistent
with forecasts included in industry reports specific to the industry in which each CGU aperates.

The following table sets out the key assumptions for those CGUs that have sipnificant goodwill allocated to them, The values assigned to the key

nssumpduns represent
management's assessment of future trends in the relevant industries and have been on historical data from both external and internal sources
5 sources,

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Sales volume (%o annual growth rate) 15.00% 15.00%,
Long wrm growth rate (%) 5.00% 6.00%
Pre-tax discount rate (%) 15.00% 16.00%

Management has determined the values assigned to cach of the above key assumptions as follows:

Assumption Approach used to determining values

Sales volume : Average annual growth rate over the five-year forecast period; based on past
performance and management’s expectations of market development.

Long-term growth rate: This is the weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the
budget period. The rates ate consistent with forecasts included in industry teports,

Pre-tax discount rates: Reflect specific risks relating to the relevant scgments and the countries in which they operate,

The management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would not cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit,

NEW DELy
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CL Educate Limited

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(A awrernnts are tr Rugpees lacs, snfess othenyise stated)

8. Details of internally generated intangible assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount Content Aspiration. Ai GATE Flix Berraimnent Tatal
software (Sofi) :
Cost or deemed cost (Gross cagrying amount)
Balance ag at April 1, 2020 594.00 81.40 61.08 49.17 1,085.64
Additions duting the year 101.37 2598 - 5 127.35
Disposals during the year - _ B ] -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 995.37 107.38 61.08 49.17 1,213.00
Additions during the year 260.24 276,92 - 145.34 635.50
Disposals during the year - - - - .
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,255.61 384.30 61.08 197.51 1,898.50
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2020 145.94 16.32 = 12.31 174.57
Amortisation for the year 238.55 10.09 12.21 984 270.69
Disposals during the year - . = " "
Balance as at March 31, 2021 384.48 26.41 12.21 22.15 445.25
Amortigation for the year 25.06 10.82 8.01 27.84 71.73
Disposals during the year - = . e _
Balance as at March 31, 2022 409.54 37.23 20.22 49.99 516.98
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2021 610.89 80.97 48.87 27.02 767.75
As at March 31, 2022 846.08 347.07 40.86 147.52 1,381.52
9. Intangibles assets under development
Particulars it As at
March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 359,13 242,64
Add: Addition during the year §73.70 420,13
Less: Capitalized during the year (819.31) (403.64)
Less: Expensed off during the year (26.01) .
Closing Balance 387.51 359.13
Intangible assets under development ageing schedule®;
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 7 :
ula ss than 12 yours 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
As at March 31, 2022
Projects in progress 176.69 66.23 144,59 387.51
176.69 66.23 144.59 - 387.51
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particul Less than 1 e ths i
atticulars ess than 19 yeues 28 yiats More than 3 Total
year years
As at March 31, 2021
Projects in progress 214,54 144.59 - = 359.13
214.54 144.59 - - 359.13

*¥There ate no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

(This shace has been imfentionally lef? blans)




CL Educate Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(LI it e tn Regees Laes, smdess athenpise stated)
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Mon-current financial assets

As
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Unsceured, considered good

Naon-corrent bank balances (Deposits widh maturity for more than 12 months from reporting date) 3448 6L.71
Security deposits 125.25 98‘139
Mote: 439.73 159,80

i. The Group's exposure to crecic and currency risks are disclosed in note 61,
ii. Includes deposits of Rs. 155.75 laes (previous year; Rs. 58.69 lacs) pledged with various authorities.

Non-current tax assets (ner)

Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 Macch 31, 2021
Advance tax (net of provision) 1,503.83 2412.87
1,503.83 2,412.87
Deferred tax assets (net)
As at As at
March 31,2022 Macch 31, 2021
Deferred tax asscts (net) {refer note 63) 119110 | 264.38
1,191.10 1,264.38
Other non-current assets
As at As at
March 31,2022 M
Unsecured, considered good oL
Capital advances 8940 75.758
Prepaid expenses 29.22 05-61
118.62 101.39
Inventorics
Asat Asat

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value

Raw materials 21.31 1245
Finished goods 140743 141947
Right to veturn assets (Refer note v) 79.30 ’ 1199
Less: Provision for slow moving inventory {11.55) (56.01)

1,496.49 1,447.90
Note:

i, Includes vaw materials lying with third pacties March 31, 2022: Rs, 21.31 lacs (Mareh 31, 2021: Rs, 12.45 lacs).
ii. Includes work-in-progress lying with third parties March 31, 2022 Nil (March 31, 2021: Rs. Nil).

iii. Inventories are pledged a5 securities for borrowings taken from banks (refer note 25 and 30).

iv. All inventories categoties represent text hooks,

v. Tor explanation on, Right to return asset, Refer note 41,

(Thiz spuice has beerr imtesstionently doft blond:)
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CL Educate Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Finaneinl Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022

(A amits are fn Raghees foes, wisless athervize stuted)

15 Current investments

Unquoted at fair value thorugh profit and loss, non-trade

As at

March 31, 2022

As ar

March 31, 2021

Investments in mutual funds {refer note below) 3,986.50 385291
3,986.50 3,852.91
3.946.50 385291

Aggregate amount of unquoted investment and market value theresf

Derails of investmient in liquid mutual fund vunits

The balances held in liguid mutual fund as at March 31, 2022 and Macch 31, 2021 are as follows:

As at March 31, 2022

As at Macch 31, 2021

Particulars
, Unit Amount Unit Amount
1CICT Prudential Liguid fund DP Growth 302 450,94 053 50 302.450.94 92168
HDFC Liguid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option 21,935.48 017.04 21.935.48 887-4“
UTI Mutual Fund 17,226,008 GIN.BS 17,226.08 SE0.60)
ARSI Liquid Fund - Growth - Direct 283,000,23 971,05 283.000.23 Giina
DSP Liquidity Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 17.549.06 543.16 17,849.66 524,00
Total 642,462.39 3,986.50 642,462.39 3,852.81
MNare:
i, There are na significant restrictions on the right of ownership, realisability of investments or the remittance of income and proceeds of disposal,
16 Trade receivables
As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured
Considered good 4.994,57 5,247.56
Credit impaired 307.20 269.61
Less: Allowances for doubtful trade receivables Pl [269,61}
4,994.57 5,247.56
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Pacticulars Not Due Less tl::m 6 months 1.2 Years 2.3 Vears More Than Tatal
6 to 1 years 3 years
As at Macch 31, 2022
Undisputed Trade Reccivables- Considered good 1,361.56 1,711.81 263.67 36828 124.28 319.36 4.148.96
Uundisputed Trade Reecivables- which have i )
significant increase in credit risk = - -
Undisputed Trade Receivables- eredit impaired = 78.12 10.85 1573 30.05 132.45 107.20
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered guon] - 17.14 3.27 63404 54.93 136.93 945.61
Disputed Trade Receivables- . ]
Which have significant increase in eredit risk F - &
Disputed Trade Reccivables- ~ B
credit impaired - = = - .
Total 1,361.56 1,807.07 277.79 1,038.05 229.26 588.04 5,301.77
Particulars Not Duc Less than & months
F = Total
G months to 1 years 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 2-3 Years
As at March 31, 2021
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered gond 1,765.91 923.36 930.93 386.52 67.64 24395 4,318.31
. ,318.
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Which have - B
signifieant increase in credit risk = > - -
Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired 1.21 74.82 9.65 17.41 60.24 106,28 269.61
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered good 213 9.18 233,10 548,12 0.49 136.23 92025
Disputed Trade Receivables-
Which have significant increase in credit visk i i ) ¥ %
Disputed Trade Receivables-
credit impaired i = 3 2 #
‘Total 1,769.25 1,007.36 1,173.68 952.05 128.37 486.46 5,517.17

Notes:

(i) The Group's exposure to credit and cutrency risks and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in note 60,

(ii) Trade Receivable ate non-interest bearing and are normally received in normal eperating cycle.
(iii) No trade or other receivable are due from ditectors or other officer of the group and firms or private companies in which any director is 4 partaer, a director or a member aither

jointy or severally with other peison.

(iv) l'tacle receivable are pledged as securities for borrowings taken from banks (refer note 25 and 30),

(Vhis ghace bas beew fnsentionally feft blands)
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Cash and cash cquivalents

Balances with banks

As ar
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

0N carrent account [ £
Cheques, drilts on hand IJ?;;I; 140527
Deposits with origmal maturities of less than 3 months _ ?2'3?
Cash on hand 143.35 2‘:2‘,:‘;
1,519.03 7
e 1,725.42
(i) The Group's exposure (o liqudity risks are disclosed in nate 60.
Banlk balances other than cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
Mirch 31, 2022 o 3
Unpaid dividend account- bank balance sl 256 L 252_1(
Deposits with original matwiry for more than three months but remanining maturity of less than nwelve months (refer note (i) belaw) SBI‘;N | ’)37.:()
7 ,237.06
584.35 1,239.62
Motes @ .
(i} Includes deposits of Rs, 303.71 lacs (previous year: Rs, 1,164.29 laes) pledged with various authorities
{11) The Group’s exposure to liguidity risks are disclosed in note 61,
Current {inancial assets - loans
As ot As at
March 31, 2022 i
Unsecured, considered good BER2 Miiruky 31, 2051
Loans to employees
49.49 51.17
lLgans to relared partics 1251 (‘l;ﬂ | ":éii
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Loans to CL USA ~ i
Less: Provision for loss allowance a {:;‘ij;’)
1,301.08 1,311,
Naote: Lt
(i} The Group's exposure to eredit and curreney risks are disclosed in note 613,
(i) The Group has given unseeured loan to their group companies/parties for meeting their working capital requirement, details of the same are as below
(i) Disclosure persuant t schedule V of Sceurities and Exchange Beard of India { Listing Obligation and Disclosure sequirements ) regulatians, 2015
i Maximum
Company Name Amount given " Secured/ i
pany during the year Rate of interest Vssceitod 0O/ during March 31, 2022
the year
Career Launcher Education Feundation 4.00 Nil Unseeured 1.251.60 1.251.60
- w2l 2510
Total 4.00 1,251.60 1,251.60
: Maximum
Company Name Amount given : Secured/ ¥
dusing the year Rute of intesest Cee s O/S duting March 31, 2021
the year
Carcer Launcher Education Foundation Z Nil Unsccured 126048 126048
Total 1,260.48 1,‘26{):48

(Tbit space fas beca intentionally eff blak)
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20 Other current financial assets
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

As ar As at
Murch 31, 2022 Macch 31, 2021

Unsecured, considered good

Unbilled revenue 837.05 178,90
Receivable on aceount of sale of business {refer note 67) 4[)0;];} 4”")'”“
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 533 ﬁ'? A
Security deposits 24821 i 0?4
Onher receivables S84.07 55.16

2,075.56 880,
Note: : L
i. The Group's exposure to ercit and currency risks are disclosed in note 60

21 Other current assets
Unsceured, considered good
As at As at
' Macch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Prepaid expenses 158814 156083
Adlvances to supplicrs 55088 '4“'50
Advances to employees B‘JI i :1;;'50
Advances to related parties 61 '2;1_ 61‘0?
Balance with statutory authorities 99 6-5 5 e 3' -

2,821.96 2,805.33
Note:
(i) Refer note 53 for transactions with related party

22 Disposal group - Assets held for sale
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Disposal Group - Assers held for sale (refer note helow) 509172 3400101
Right of Use Assets Sa5h e
Tease Liahility (14.65) )

5,259.86 346011
Note ¢

The aszets held for sale consists of following ;

(a) During the current year, the Hulding Company has initiated the pracess of sale of the property held at Greater NOIDA. The sale has been approved by the Board Members and Audit
committee in its mecting held on May 19, 2022, The management has disclosed such Assets as "Disposal Group - Assets held for sale” as on the reporting date in accordance with Ind
AS-105 "Non-Current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.

The Holding Company has clssified lease hold land already classified as Right of Use asscets amaunting to Rs. 168,14 lacs (Net of lease liability) and Building amounting to Rs. 2,103.19
lacs located at Greator Noida (Previous Year: frechold land amounting Rs. 518,65 lacs and Building amounting to Rs. 27.51 lues located at Pt s Bk Pt L L5,

(b) On March 16, 2017, the Group cntered into a Business Transfer Agreement with I-Take Care Private Limited (the “Buyer’) ta sell its Infrastrucmure Services business (the “Assets™) on
the slump sale basis. The proposed sale of business is consistent with the Group’s leng-termi strategy to discontinue its 1$-12 business. As on date, transaction is cancelled as I-Take Care
Private Limited haso't buen able to arrange the requisite funds ro close the sale, accordingly, advance received has been refunded. Also, the Managemuat is in parallel discussions with
other parties to locate an alternate buyer o give effect to the disposal of the Assets. As the delay is caused by the events and circumstances beyond the Group’s conm;l Fad ke
Managument remains committed 1o its plan to sell the Assers and the Group continues o disclose such Asscts as "Disposal group-Assets held for sale” in accordance \\-'l'l:h‘lnd ﬁLLIOS
"Non-Current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations®. ;

(¢} Duting the previous year, the Graup has classified freehold land amounting Rs. 518,65 lacs and Building amounting to Rs, 27.51 lacs loeared at Faridabad, as assets held for sale On July
22, 2020, the Group entered into an agreement for sale of its property situated at Faridabad, for which the total amount of consideration is Rs. 750,00 lacs out of which Rs 911 ?5- lacs ha:;
been teceived as an advance, The carrying amount of the non-current asset will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through a continuous use, "]I"I:c ‘tr:ln‘%acti&)n
is expected o be complete prior to March 31, 2023, Thus the Group is disclosing such nssers as assets held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 "f\’on-Curmnt assets held for S;nlc and
Discontinued Operations”, The carrying value of asset held for sale as on the date of agreement does not exceed the fair value less cost o sale and hence there is no impairment loss to

be recognised in the consolidated siatement of profit and loss,
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=

Share capital

Authorised
5,45,60,000 (Mavch 31, 2021: 16,000,000 equity shares of Rs, 10 each) cquiry shares of Rs.

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
2,83,31,356 (March 31, 2021: 14,165,678 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) equity shares of Rs.
5 each, fully paid up

. Terms and rights attached to equity shares

Voting
Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held,

Dividends

As ar As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1,600,000 L,G00.00
1,416.57 | 416.57
1,416.57 1,416.57

The Holding Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in

ensuing Annual General Mecting except in the case where interim dividend is distribused,

Intetim dividend paid

Liquidation

In the evenr of liquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity shares shall be entitled to receive all of the remainin
after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any, Such diseribution amounts will be in proportion to the number

. Reconciliation of number of shates outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :

Year ended

Match 31, 2022

Year ended

March 31, 2021

Nil

il

g assets of the Holding Company,
of equity shares held by the sharcholders,

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 14,165,678 1,416.57 14,165,678 141657
Addition due to spilit of shares 14,165,678 . R )
Ourstanding at the end of the year 28,331,356.00 1,416.57 14,165,678.00 1,416,57

Note: (i)

During the current year the holding company has not issued any fresh equity share on account of ESOP (previous year : Nil)

. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Haolding Company:

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 2021

MNo. of shares Percentage Mo, of shares Percentage

Mr. Satya Narayanan R 4,962,219 17.51% 2,455,761 17.34%,
Mr. Gautum Puri 4,714,260 16.64% 2,357,130 16.64%
Bilakes Consulting Private Limited 2,510,920 8.86% 1,255,460 8.86%
Flowering Tree Invesement Management Pre. Led, (along with its 2,465,144 8.70% 1,025,572 7.24%,
Persons Acting in Concern i.e. Arjuna Fund Pte. Ltd and Asheka
Pte. Lid.)
GPE (India) Limited 1,892,946 6.68% 946,473 6,68%
Sundaram Asscts Management Company Limited - 0,00% 779,311 5.50%

16,545,489 58.39% 4,819,707 62.26%
Details of shares held by promoters and promoters group in the Company:

As at Macch 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021*
No. of shares Percentage No. of shares Percentage

MName of Promoter
My, Satya Narayanan R 4962219 17.51% 2,455,761 17.34%
M, Gautam Puri 4,714,260 16.64% 2,357,130 16.64%,
M. Nikhil Mahajan 65,734 0.23% 32,817 0.23%,
Mr. R Shivakomar Tl4,3062 2.52% 357,181 2,520,
Mr, R Sreenivasan 707,396 2.50% 353,698 2.50a
Mr. Sujit Bhattacharyya 406,124 1.43% 203,062 1.43%
Bilakes Consulting Private Limited 2,510,920 3.86% 1,255,460 8.86%

14,081,015 49.69% 7,015,109 49.52%

MNote:

#I'he Members of the Company at the 25th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 07,

2021, had approved

Cyuity Share of the Company of Face Value of Rs.10/- into 2 (Twa) fully paid-up Bquity Shares of Face Value of Rs.5/- ea
up: Lacquity pany P 2 L gl

dare’).

A

the sub-division of each Fully Paid-
chaw.a.f-Qetober 01, 2021 (Record
~ 'ﬁ\T [ = f
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)

e. Apgregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the repocting date

-

i. The Holding Company has issued 265,604 equity shaves as fully paid up without payment being received in cash during the financial years 20152016 to 2019-20, all

of which were issued in financial year 2015-16.

i The Holding Company has issued equity shares aggregating 45,931 (March 31,2021: 45,931) of Rs.10 each fully paid up during the financial years 20015-16 10 2019-
20, o exercise of options granted under the employee stock option plans wherein part consideration was received in form of employee services.

itl. No equity shares have been issued by way of bonus shares during the financial years 2015-16 to 202021,

iv. No equity shares have been bought back by Holding Company pursuant to Section 68, 69 and 70 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial years 2015-16

to 2020-21.

For Details for share reserved for issue under the emplayee stock option of the Holding Company (refer to note 57),

Other equity

25.1 Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: loss for the year

Add: Other comprehensive income (ner of ax)
Reneasutement of defined bencfit plans

Balance at the end of the year

25.2 Sccurities premium

Balance at the beginning/end of the year

25.3 Amalgamation Adjustment reserve

Balance at the beginning/end of the year

25.4 General reserves
Balance at the beginning/end of the year

25.5 Equity component of compound financial instruments

Balance at the beginning/end of the year

25.6 Deemed equity

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Addition during the year
Balance at the end of the year

25.7 Capital resetves

Balance at the beginning/end of the year

Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance at the beginning/end of the year
Add: Exchange difference
Balance at the end of the year

Total equity attributable to owners

Mon-controlling interest reserve
Balance at the beginning/end of the year

Add: Addidon during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Total reserves and surplus

MNature and purpose of reserves

Retained carnings

Created from profit/loss of the Company, as adjusted for distributions to owners and transfer to other reserve.

Asg at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(4,435.31) (3,205.52)
1,379.06 (1,245.88)
24,07 16.09
(3,032.18) (4,435.31)
29,858.85 29,858.85
(2,264.54) (2,264.54)
36.96 36.96
4.85 4.85
53.06 51.51
7.92 1.55
60.98 53.06
0.20 0.20
27.75 0.33
54.81 2742
82.56 27.75
24,747.68 23,281.82
12,50 26.90
(13.26) (14.40)
(0.76) 12,50
24,746.92 23,294.32

NEW DELHI
110044

fr
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Nature and purposc of reserves (continued from previous page)

(iiy General reserve
The Company appropriates @ portion to general reserves out of the profits cither as per the requitements of the Companies Act 20113 (Aet’) or volunearily o mect
. ; St i 8 < r arily o mec
future contingencics. The said reserve is available for payment of dividend (o the shareholders as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 20113 ’
(iii) Securities premium
Securities premium has been ereared upon issue of shares at premium. The reserve shall be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Aet, 2013
(iv) Employee stock options outstanding amount
The Company has an equity-settled share-hased paymene plans for certain categories of employees of the Company. Refer o Note 56 for further details on
3 « AlS o1 NS
plans.
(v)  Foreign currency translation reserve
The Group appropriates a pordon to general reserves out of the profits eicher as per the requitements of the Companies Act 2013 (Aet) or voluntatily 1o meer
future contingencics, The said reserve is available fur payment of dividend to the sharcholders s per the provisions of rhe Ac
(vi) Deemed equity
Deemed equity arising out of financial guaranree received from its Promorers.
(vii) Capital reserve
The capital reserve was generated on account of acquisition of erstwhile Paragon classes in the FY 2001-02,
(viii) Amalgmation Adjustment Reserve
Amalgamation adjustment deficit aiccount is a reserve on account of adjustments of net asset transferred o amalgamated company, as negarive carrying value of net
assers transferred, therefore amount presented as amalgamation adjustment deficit account
25  Non-current borrowings
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Secured loan
From banks
Vehicle loans (refer note §) 30,64 48.30
Term loans (refer nore ii) 4;15'44 (16.}’(
- 3 10,00
From financiul institutions
Term loans (refer note iil) 96.49 349,25
Tatal non-current borrowings 572.57 1014
Less: Current maturities of non-current borrawings (included in note 34) 2?5'4? ? 4 4{].?:
Less: Interest accrued bue not due on horrowings (included in note 34) -‘I—“ ?'2..
Non-current borrowings (as per balance sheet) - 2
292,39 566.85
The Group's exposure to currency risks, liquidity tisks and interest rate risks are disclosed in note 60,
i, Vehicle loans from bank
Wehicle Joans from bank ate sccured against hypothecation of concetned vehicles, The vehicle loans from bank carry intevest rate in the range of 8.25% to 9,18 %
| i a . . n
per annum (March 31, 2021 : 8.25% 1o 9.18 % per annum). The weighted average remaining tenure for these loans is 1.99 years (March 31, 2021 : 2.99 years); with -
total cqual monthly installment of Rs. 135 lacs per month (31 March, 2021 : Rs, 1.35 lacs per month). ; R ! *
ii. Secured Term loans from bank
a) RBL Bank

The Holding Company had taken a term loan from Ratnakar Bank Limited (RBL), Year end halances of the loan is Nil (March 31, 2021; Rs. 116.66 lacs)

Interest rate:

() These loans carry interest at 10.35% per annum (March 31, 2021 : 10.50% p.a)

Repayment schedule:

(i) The loan is repayable in 12 equal quartedy installments of Rs, 58.33 lacs (cxclusive of interest). The repay i

: h | : payment of instllments has ¢

and the last installment was paid on September 30, 2021, A eomRcoRet o Juns 30,2008

Primary security

(1) These loans together with current borrowings ate secured by subrevient charge by way of hypothicati " i
ypothicarion on all present and furur : sets inclasiv el

and book debts and moveable fixed assets of the Holding Company. EAD N R N

(if) Licn on fixcd deposit of Rs. 371.35 Lacs ( March 31, 2021 Rs. 371,35 lacs) to be kept with Bank during the tenure of Loan which ended on September 30, 202

Coliateral security:
The loan was secured by personal guarantees of the promoter and directors (Satyanarayan R., Gautam Puri and Nikhil Mahajan) of the Huolding Company.
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25

Non-current borrowings (continued from previous page)

k) HDEC Banl

26

27

29

The Holding Company had taken a term loan from HDFC Bank under Emergency Credir Line Guaranteed Scheme (ECGLS). Year end balance of the Term loan
is Rs. 443.02 lacs (Previous year: Rs, 500,00 lacs)

Interest rate:

(i) These loans carry interest at B.80% per annum.

Repayment schedule:
{i) ‘The loan is repayable in 36 monihly installments after principle moratorium of 12 month. The repayment of installments will commence from December 7. 2021

and the last installment will be due on November 7, 2024,

Secured Term loans from financial institution
During the previous year, the Group has taken a term loan from Tata Capital. Year end balance of the Term loan is Rs. 95.22 lacs [previous yeaar : Rs, 344.37 lacs)

Interest rate:
(i) These loans carry interest at 2% per annum.

Repayment schedule:
(i) The loan is repayable in 36 monthly installments after principle moratorium of 12 month. The repayment of installments has commenced and the lase installment

will be due on April 1, 2022,

Collateral security
a. Lien on fixed deposits amounting Rs. 75.00 lakhs ( March 31, 2021: Rs 375.00 lakbs) (Reter Note 10 and 20)

The term loans have been used for the specific purpose for which they are raken as at the year cnd.

Non-current lease liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ease liablities (refer note 51) 367.06 146.00
Less: reclassed to assets held for sale (14.65) =
352.41 146.00
MNon-curtent provisions
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity {refer note 52) 290.95 353.01
Compensated absences 205,76 235.82
496.71 588.83
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred tax liabilities (refer note 63) v 9.40
- 9.40
Other non-current liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Unearned revenue 197.41 108,48
197.41 108.48

(Lhix spare has been intentionally left Dauk)
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30 Current borrowings

As at As ar
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Secured ;
- From banks
- Cash credit (refer note i below) 1,106.50 3.262.24
Unsecured R
- from related partics 0.61 0.00
- from others (refer note i below) 18.09 | 3’34
Current maturites of non-current term loan {rom banks 166,67 172,22
Current maturitics of non-current term loan from others g5 23 25‘3'%
Current maturities of non-current vehicle loan [d.58 16.96
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 3.27 (,Im

1,404.94 3,722.83

The Group's exposure to currency risks, liquidity risks and interest rate risks are disclosed in note 60,

Notes:
(i) Details of these loans are as follows:
Cash credit represents overdraft from HDEC and TCICI bank taken by Holding Company and from Induslnd bank by Group Company's respectively, which are

repayable on demand,

(a) Details of loan taken from HDFC Bank

The Holding Company had entered into a finance facility agreement with limit amountng Rs. 1,000.00 lacs (March 31, 2021 :Rs. 3.000.00 lacs) with HDEC Banlk
Limited comprising of Rs. 750.00 lacs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 750.00 lacs) as an overdraft facility & Rs. 250,00 lacs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 2.250 lacs) as a dmpiimi-

overdraft facility,

Interest rate
These loans carry interest at bank's base rate + 3.75% (March 31, 2021: bank's base rate + 3,759 W) per annum.

Secutity
These borrowings are secured by way of first and exclusive charge on all present and future current and moveable assets including moveable fixed assets of the
Holding Company.
The Borrowing are further secured by equitable mortgage on following properties of the Holding Company:
- Plot Na. 15-A | Block 1T, Knowledge Park, Greater Noida
- Office space No. 1 and 2, Third Floor, FC Road, Shivaji Nagar, Pune
- Unit No. 207, Second Tloor, District Centre, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi

The Borrowing are further secured by personal guarantees of the promoter and directors (Satyanarayan R, Gautam Puri and Nikhil Mahajan) of the Holding
Company.

(b) Details of loan taken from ICICI Bank
The Group had entered into a overdraft facilicy for LAS account with limit amounting Rs, 1,000.00 lacs (Mareh 31, 2021 : Rs.1,000.00 lacs) with ICICT Bank

Limited,

Interest rate
These facility carry interest at bank's base rate + 0.20% (March 31, 2021: bank's base rate + 0.20%) per annum,

Security
The facility is sccured by the Mutual Funds taken by the Halding Company.

(¢) Details of loan taken from IndusInd bank

Interest rates

a. The facility availed carrics an interest rate of | L50% (March 31, 2021 : 11.50%) pet annum,

Primary security

First and exclusive charge on entire current assets of the Holding Company both present and fature for cash credit from Induslnd Bank,

Collateral security

a. Licn on fixed deposits amounting Rs. 370.00 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs 370,00 lakhs)

b. First and exclusive charge on movable fixed assers of the Holding Company both present and futare.

¢. The Borrowing are further secured by personal guarantees of the promoter and divectors (Gautam Puri and Nilchil Mahajan) of the Holding Company.

(ii) Details of unsecured loans
Lonan represents the unsecured loan taken from Phoenix Academy at an interest rate of 11,50% pet annum. The said loan is repayable on demand
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(iii) Details of quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Holding Company with banks and reasons:
Tor the year ended 31 March 2022:

MName of bank Quarter Particulars of [Amountas per  |Amount as Remarks/reasons (if any)
ended securities boolks of reported in the
provided accounts quarterly
statement
HDEC Bank and Induslnd Bank |30 June 2021 [Pari-passu 4,054.03 4,848,935 Variance 15 on the account of Fxpeeted
charge on Credit Toss provisions coupled with the
current assces differences in the reporting format to the
respective banks
HIDFC Bank and Indusind Bank (30 September  |Pari-passu 4,994.84 5,114.07 Varianee is on the account of Tixpected
2021 charge on Credir Loss provisions coupled with the
CULLCIIC ASSCLs differences in the reporting format to the
respective banks
HDFC Bank and IndusInd Bank |31 December  [Pari-passu 3,558.84 3,714.71 Vatiance is on the account of Expected
2021 charge on Credit Loss provisions coupled with the
current assets differences in the reporting format to the
respective banks
HDFC Bank and IndusInd Bank |31 March 2022 | Pari-passu 4,487.81 4,017.36 Variance is on the account of Bxpected
charge on Credit Loss provisions coupled with the
cutrent assets differences in the reporting formar o the
respective banks

(iv) Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities:

Paticilits Borrowings Lease liabilities
articu (Refer (a) below)  (Refer (b) below)
Balance as at April 1, 2020 4.772.64 883.00
Interest expense = 40.84
Loan repayments (net) (489.56) (618.94)
Other non cash changes 6,60 (44.66)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 4,289.68 261.24
Interest expensc N 35.35
Loan repayments (net) (2,592.32) (532,45)
Other non cash changes (0.03) 751,30
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,697.33 515.53
(2)
As at As at
Borrowings March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
-Current (refer note 30) 1,404.94 3,722.83
-Non-Curtent (refer note 25) 292.30 566.85
1,697.33 4,289.68
(b)
As at As at
Leuse liabilities March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
-Current {refer note 31) 163.12 115.24
-Non-Cutrent (refer note 26) 35241 146.00
515.53 261.24
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3

32

Current lease linbilities

Lense liablities (refer note 51)

Trade payables

Trade payables

_ total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Ag ar As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
163,12 115.24
163.12 115.24
As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

66,50
2,778.55

78,26
2,401.88

2,845.05

2,480.14

Partculars

MNot Due

Quistanding for following periods from due date of

payment

Less than
1 year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More Than
3 years

Total

As at March 31, 2022

Towal owstnding dues of Micro
enterprises and small enterprises

2218

44,32

66.50

T'atal outstanding dues of
creditois orher than Micro
caterpriscs and small enterprises

1,302.48

1,121,10

179.64

98.36

76.97

2,778.53

Disputed Dues of Micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed Dues of ereditors other
than Mict enterprises and small
cnterprises

Tatal

1,324.66

1,165.42

179.64

98.36

76.97

2,845.05

Particulars

Not Due

Qutstanding for follo

wing periods from due date of |

payment

Less than
1year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More Than
3 years

Total

As at March 31, 2021

Total ourstanding dues of Micro
enterprises and small enterprises

T4.80

78.26

Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than Micro
enterptises and small enterprises

831.69

32112

121.82

95,34

2,401.88

Disputed Ducs of Micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed Dues of creditors other
than Micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Total

1,035.37

906.49

321.12

121.82

95.34

2,480.14

Note:

i, Refer note 55 for dues to micro and small enterprises.
ii. The Group's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related ta trade payables are disclosed in note 60.

iii. Other creditors are non intercst bearing and are normally scttled in normal trade cycle,
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33

34

35

36

Other eurrent financial liabilities

Advance received an behall of others
Revenue received in advance

Unpaid dividends

Employee related payables

Payable to selling shareholders

Note:
i. The Group's exposure ro currency risks, liquidity risks and interest rate risks are disclosed in note 60.

Other current liabilities

Unearned revenue
Statutory dues payable
Advance against sale of business undertaking (slump sale) (refer note 22)

Refund liablity created against right to return
Others

Current provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuiry (refer note 52)
Compensated absences

Current tax liabilities

Provision for income-tax (net of advance rax}

As at Ag ot
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
24.15 83.80
5.74 -
2.56 2.56
652,16 760.61
28.06 28.06
T712.67 875.09
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1,563.44 1,270.81
341.58 258,52
- 135,13
99.13 89.99
(5.84 08.30
2,069.98 1,822.75
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
24.36 5.42
38.02 7.23
62.38 12.65
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
17.51 7.37
17.51 7.37

[
/Y,

(L NEW DELHI
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37 Revenue from operations

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Sale of products:

Text boaks 241645 1,466.41
Sule of services:

Education and training programimes 9,588.73 8,333.43

Event management services income 7,813.35 7,562.10
Other operating revenue

Advertsing income 91393 &45.70

Scrap sales 1.6l 2335

20,746.09 18,230.90

Disaggregated revenue information as per geographical markets

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Geographical markets

Particuiats India Overseas Total
Fducation and training programmes 8,895.78 69295 9,588.73
Sale of text books 222806 188.3% 2,416.45
Income from advertisement services 91593 - 915.93
Event management Services income 6,356.15 1,457.23 7,813.38
Scrap sales 11.61 - 11.61
18,407.52 2,338.57 20,746.09
For the year ended March 31, 2021
Geographical markets
Particulars India Overseas Total
Education and waining programmes 8,016.22 317.21 8,333.43
Sale of text books 1,203.79 262.62 1,466.41
Income from advertisement services 845.70 - 845,70
Event management Services income 6,631.90 230.20 7.562.10
Serap sales 23.25 = 23,25
16,720.86 1,510.03 18,230.90
Changes in contract lablity are as follows:- Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,379.29 1,981.01
Revenue tecognised thar was deducted from trade receivables as unecarned revenue - (1,097.02) (1,960.17)
balance at the beginning of the year
Increase due to invoicing duting the yearexcluding amount recognised as revenue during 1,579.47 1,693.75
Reclassification of uncarned revenue that is not yer collected in cash (100.88) (335.30)
from trade receivables
Balance at the end of the year 1,760.86 1,379.29
WNote :
Opening balance of contract liability is inclusive of uncarned revenue not yet collected cash from trade receivable.
‘T'he transaction price allocated to the remaining petformance obligations (unsatistied or Year ended Year ended
patially unsatisfied) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Within one year 173730 1,617.50

More than one year 124.35 97.69




CI. Educate Limited
Noies to the Consolidaied Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022

(AU amnts ave i Rapees faes, wardess otbenwise siated)

IL.

Revenue from operations (continued from previous page)

Changes in contract assets are as follows: Yearemdos REatriniec

2 C ) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 542640 949582
Revenue recognised that was deducted fram trade receivable as unearned revenue (5,426.46) (9,495.,82)
balance ai the beginaing of the year

Increase due 1o invoicing during the year, Excluding amount tecopnised as revenue 6,139.73 5.696.07

duning the vear

Credie impaired (307.20) (269.61)
Revenue not recognised that was deducted from tracle receivable as urearned revenue

palance at the end of the year

Balance at the end of the year 5,832.52 5,426.46

Revenue as an agent

The Group is involved in marketing and sale services. Such activities interalia involves, working at times, as an agent of the customers far certain
events or for certain activities in an event. For example the customer at times request for collection of registration fees for the event, which is
collected by the Holding Company and paid to the customers. Tn such cases normally there are, either the relared event revenue or notmal
fees/commission. In such case the revenue disclosed in the financials includes only the amount of the fees/commission in accordance with para
34t 38 of Ind AS 115, During the financial year 2021-22 the details of the collectable amount on behalf of the customers are detailed as under.
Such amount is generally paid as and when collected and balance if any is disclosed under “Receipts on behalf of clients™ as other current [inancial

liability,

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021

Amount collecred/collertable on behalf of various customers 503.19 808,74

Amount of fees/commission/related charges forming part of the revenue for the year 13.10 26.21

The Group is involved in marketing and sale services. Such activities interalia involyes, working at times, 1s agent of the customers For certain
events of for certain activities in an event, For example the customer at times request for payment to various vendors for the services tendered w
them, which is paid by the Holding Company to various vendors and collected from customers. In such cases normally there are, either the related
event revenue or normal fees/ commission, In such case the revenue disclosed in the financials includes only the amount of the fees/commission
in accordance with para 34 to 38 of Ind As 115. During the fnancial year 2021-22 the details of the amount paid/ payable on behalf of the
customers are detailed as under. Such amount is generally collected from client as and when paid and balance if any is disclosed under “Trade
Reccivable” as current financial assets,

Particulats Yeat ended Year ended
Match 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Amount paid/payable on behalf of various customets duting the year 28.02 -

Amount of fees/commission/related charges forming part of the revenue for the year 1.42 .

(This space bas been intentiaitallt lft blank)
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39

40

Other income

Interest income from financial asscts measured at amorctised cost

- Security deposits

- Fixed deposits

- Income tax refunds

- Others
Gain on fair value change of current investmenr
Liabilities no longer requiree written back
Rent income on investment property (refer note 5)
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Finance income on financial guarantees
Gain on madification and termination of leases
Reversal of provision for expected credit losses
Reversal of provision for slow-moving inventory
Excess provisions written back
Miscellaneous income

Cost of materials consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year

Add: Purchases during the year (Refer note i)
Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Sub-total (A)

Printing cost
Sub-tatal (B)

Total (A+B)

Notes:

(i) Details of purchases are as follows:
Paper

Lamination material

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Text books

(his space has been intettionadlt loft blank)

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

18.12 22.86
62,13 104,52
146,75 64.33
. 371
133.59 136.57
214.83 35294
2,60 L1 10D
2294 .
230.31 1.40
1.85 1.85
16.52 15.06
167.56
- 43.39
13.64 34.38
870.29 959.67
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1245 27.66
201.72 93.06
(21.31) (12.45)
192.806 108.27
284,58 160.90
284.58 160.90
477.44 269.17
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
201.72 93.06
201.72 93.06
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
2411 18.62
24.11  18.82
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41 Changes in inventories of stock in trade

Inventoties at the end of the year
-Finished goods
-lmpact of Right to return assets

Total

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Tinished goods

“Waork-in-progress

-Impact of Right to refurn assets

-Other adjustment

Total

Net decrease/ (increase) in inventories

Note:

Right to return assets indicates the cost component of expected refurns recognised.

42 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 52)

Expenses related to post-employment defined benefie plans (refer note 52)

Expenses related to compensated absences
Share-hased payment to employees (refer note 57)
Staff welfare expenses

43 Finance costs

Interest expense on borrowings measured at amortised costs
Interest expenses on refund of advance

Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues

Interest expensc on lease liabilities (refer note 51)

Finance cost on financial puarantees

Other borrowing costs

44 Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on property, plant and cquipment (refer note 3)
Amottisation of intangible assets (refer note 7)

Depreciation on investment propetty (refer note 5)
Depreciation on Right-of-use of assets (refer note 4)

(Lhis spece has been intentionallt left blank)

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

1, 40743 1,419.47
79.30 71.99
1,486.73 1,491.46
1,419.47 1,384.62
- 6.39
7199 130.99

(65.36) 5
1,426.11 1,522.00
(60.64) 30.54

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
3,314.01 3,551.00
180.74 187.25
82,02 83.14
32.28 59.96
111.68 82.62
3,720.73 3,963.97
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 Mazrch 31, 2021

281,17 479.78

347 _
1.54 591
35.35 40,84
7.57 12.60
23.15 23.94
352.25 563.11

Yeur ended

Year ended

March 31, 2022 Match 31, 2021
144.20 21991
524.26 466.92
5.75 L
132,78 142.59
806.99 835.17

NEW DELHI
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45

47

Service delivery expenses

Franchisee expenses

Project expenses

Faculiy expenses

Communication expenses

Digital Learning support expenses
Sponsorship fees

Material printing cost

Vocational Business Servicing Costs

Sales and marketing expenses

Advertisement and marketing expenses
Digital marketing cost
Business promotion

Other expenses

Rent (refer note 51)

Bad debts written off

Sundry halances written off

Legal and professional charges (refer note 48 below)
Travelling and conveyance

Office expenses

Equipment hire expenses

Repairs ta:

-Buildings

-Orthers

Loans and Advances written-off

Provision for expected credit loss

Rates and taxes

Freight and cartage cutward

Porcign exchange loss (net)

Insurance

Commission to non executive directors

Sales incentive

Inventory written off

Consumption of packing materials

Corporate Social Responsibility (refer note 54)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Espenses on transfer of propetty

Brokerage on wansfer of property
Miscellancous expenses

(Lhis space las been ttentionallt lefi blank)

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
Murch 31, 2021

4,267.02 3,355.46
5,455.36 4,688.04
206.11 293.92
21790 194.49
176.13 224.20
35.23 =
213.05 37.08
23.32 3.12
10,594.12 8,796.31

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended

March 31, 2021

270,76 240.52
926.31 566.59
106.22 66,78
1,303.29 873.89
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
227.99 323.65
183.19 2,853.42
47.08 -
642,14 511.42
171.29 08.14
540.18 499,10
109.93 46.74
22,81 19.83
62.38 57.49
0.10 47.00
37.59 20.98
229.66 221.56
2211 23.08
4.47 86.82
50.17 60.96
10.85 12.33
63.30 56.58
- 4.63
_12.79 6.51
40,39 50,94
(.22 042
55.00 -
10.75 -
93.34 282.88
2,637.73 5,314.48
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48 Payment to auditors (excluding G5T)

Statutory audit
Oither services
Out of pocket expenses

49 Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per shace
Tiom continuing aperations attributable to the cquity holders
Erom discontinuing operations attributable to the equity holders

(b) Diluted earnings per share

From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders

From discontinuing operations attributable to the equity holders

(¢) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating carnings per share

Basic and diluted eatnings per share

2022

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
Mazrch 31, 2021

Profit/(loss) atibutable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share:

From continuing operations
I'rom discontinuing operations

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

42.25 49.00

12.80 14.40

1.05 0.85

56.10 64.25

Year endead Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

4.87 4.51)

- 0.06
4.87 #.51)

- 0.06
1,379.87 (1,276.51)

(0.81) 16.23

No of shares

Weighted average numbey of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic

and diluted earnings per share

283,313,560

(1his space has been intentionallt lft blank)

No of shares

283,313,560
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A

1)

1ii)

iv)

vi)

Contingent liabilities, commitments and litigations

Commitments As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Fstimated amount of contracts remaining to be execated on capital - 10,95
account and not provided for (net of advances)

Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts (refer note a) 2,141.30 1,870.01
2,141.30 7,788.48

Note a: Details of claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts

Service tax MAattcrs Matters in dispute/under appeal for various years 1,077.69 T55.09
Incoime-tax matters Matters in dispute/under appeal for various years 965.96 1,015.84
Orther cases Matters 1n dispute/under appeal # 97.45 949.08

2,141.30 1,870.01
Remarks:

(i) The management is of the opinion that, based on issues decided in the eatlier years and the legal advice that the ultimate outcame of the legal
proceedings in respect to tax marters, as given above will be in favour of the Group and also will not have material adverse effect to the financial
position of the Group.

# Other cases

Triangle Education, a Franchisee of the Holding Company in Jaipur, had arbitrarily terminated the agreement and started a competng business
using the brand of CIL Educate, The Holding Company has filed a statement of clam before the sole Arbitrator amounting Rs. [90.00 lacs (Mazch
31, 2021: Rs. 190.00 lucs) against triangle education. Triangle Education also filed a counter claim against the Holding Company amounting Rs.
32.06 lacs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 32.06 lacs). The Sole arbitrator has passed the final order partially in favour of the Holding Company, The Hui-ding
Company is planning to challenge the said orders to next appellate authority.

A student, has filled a case against the Holding Company for refund of fees amounting Rs. 6.20 lacs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 6.20 lacs) on the ground
that he paid fees to Brilliant Tutorials considering the fact that the Holding Company has a tic-up with Brilliant Tutorial which was subsequently
called off by the Holding Company. The matter is fixed for final argument on June 3, 2022, :

"The Director of Industries and Cominerce cum Chairman MSE- Chandigarh has sent a notice amounting Rs. 12,31 lacs (March 31, 2021: Rs.12.31
lacs including interest of Rs, 3.30 lacs) on behalf of Reivera Fabricators regarding non payment of dues on account of uniforms supplied to Indus
World Schools. The Holding Company has preferred an appeal against the same and the matter was fixed for final argument on April 15, 2021 but
due to Covid-19 date of argument is shifted to next available slot,

Bawadia kala shikisha samiti, a lessor has filed a case against the Holding Company for recovery of rent /arrears amounting Rs. 46.88 Lacs {Merch
31, 2021: Rs. 46,88 lacs) for non payment of rent, Holding Company engaged a local lawyer who will file necessary application to transfer the case
to New Delhi as the rent agreement has an arbitration clause, which will be decided in New Delhi, The matter is fixed for final arpument on Juns
14, 2022.

A Student had filed a case against the Holding Company citing deficiency of services provided amounting to Rs. 163 lacs (March 31, 2021: s, 1.63
lacs). The ease is settled in the favour of the Student and the amount of compensation of Rs, 1.36 lacs paic on May 4, 2022,

Apart from those disclosed above, the Group has certain ongoing litigations involving customers, vendors and employees, Based on legal advice of
in house legal teamn, the management believes that no material liability will devolve on the Group in respect of these litigations.
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Other litigations

In the financial year 2009-10, the Holding Company had given a franchisee to Ms Monica Oli in the name of Comprehensive Hdueation and IT
Ttaining Institute ro provide test preparation services in Dubai (UAE). In the financial year 2012-13, the Haolding Company had terminated the
franchise agreement on account of non-recovery of fees collected by the franchisee from students. At the time of the cancellation of agreement the
total amount of receivables from and payable o Ms Monica Oli were AED 1,019,842 (Rs. 150.88 lacs) and AED 261,318 (Rs. 38.66 lacs)
respectively. The Holding Company had preferred arbitration in the matter and the Hon'ble Arbitrator has passed an award amounting AED
2,063,267 (equivalent to Rs. 351,37 lacs) in favour of the Holding Company including damages. The Holding Company had obtained the necessary
execution documents from the Delhi High Court and sent these documents through the Todian lmbassy for depositing in the Dubai Courts for
execution. Due to the onset of the global pandemic COVID-19, courts in Dubai have been shut since February 2020, This has caused a temporary
delay in proceedings with the matter to be taken up once the courts reopen,

The Holding Company has filed legal cases against certain debrors for recovery of outstanding reccivables amounting Rs 136,34 lacs (March 31,
2021: Rs 136.34 lacs). The Holding Company is of the view that all such balances ave fully recoverable and no provision is required. Further, the
Holding Company has also filed cases against certain parties for recovery of damages avising from fraudulent use of Holding Company’s brand
name, violation of terms and conditions of employment ete, amounting Rs 72812 lacs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 728.12). The amount likely to be
realised, in all these cascs, is currently not ascertainable but the Holding Company, based on discussion with concetned lawyers and the
proceedings of the cases is hopeful that there would not be any adverse impact on the financial position, and the realisation would be more than
the outstanding amount. The Holding Company has recorded all expenses pertaining to legal and professional charges in respect of all such cases.

Leases

The Group has applied Ind AS 116 with the date of initial application of April 1, 2019, As a result, the Group has changed its accounting policy for
lease contracts (Refer note 2(xi}). The adoption of this new standard has resulted in the Group recognising a right-of-usc assets and related lease
liability in connection with all former operating leases except for those identified as low value or having a lease term of less than 12 months. The
Group applied Ind-AS 116, leases using the modified retrospective approach.

Group as "Lessee"
The Group has significant leasing agreements in respect of operating leases for its various office premises and godowns. These lease arrangements
are for a period between 12 months to 143 months and include both cancellable and non-cancellable leases.

Lease liabilities
The movement in lease liabilities are as follows :

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening Balance 201.24 883.99
Addition during the year 451.67 -
Finance cost accrued during the period 3535 40.84
Payment of lease liabilities (532.45) (618.94)
Reclass to Asset held for Sale (14.64) £}
Reversal on account of modification/ termination of lease 314.36 (44.65)
Closing Balance 515.53 261.24
Non-cutrent Leasc liabilities (refer note 26) 352.41 146.00
Current Lease liabilities (refer note 31) 163.12 115.24

(This space has been intentionaflt left blanfk)
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The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilitics are as follows

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non
cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than five years

Total

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non
cancellable opetating leases are payable as follows:

Mot later than one year

Later than ane vear and not larer than five years

Total

For disclosures in respect of Right-of-use assets, refer note 4
Shott term lease

As on Magrch 31, 2022

Lease Payments

Finance Charges

Net present Value

175.85 12.76 163.12
382.22 20.81 352,41
558.10 42.57 515.53

As on March 31, 2021

Lease Payments

Finance Charges

Net present Value

129.52 14.28 115.24
162.88 16.88 146.00
292.40 3L16 261.24

The company used the following practical expedient when applying Ind AS-116, leases.

- Applied the exemptions nat to recognise right-of-use assers and liabilities for lease with less than 12 months of term lease,

- Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate of lease,

Fxpenses relating to short term leases (included in other expense)

Group as a lessor

‘The Group has given its premises on cancellable operating lease to one of its franchisces,
Rental income recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss during the year amounring Rs 9.60 lacs

(March 31, 2021: Rs. 11.10 lacs).

(This space has been intentionalit left blank)

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
22799 323.65
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Employee benefits
The Group contributes to the following post-cmplayment detined benetit plans in India,

Defined Contribution Plans:

The Group makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of empluyee salaries, in respeer of qualifying cnployces towards provident fund and seare
insurance, which are defined contiibution plans. The Group has no obligations other than to make the specificd contributions. The contributions are charged to
the starement of profit and loss as they accrue.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 Match 31, 2021
Employers contribution to provident fund 178,54 182.43
Employers contribution o state insurance 2.20 452

Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity

The Group operates a post-employment defined benetie plan for Gratity. Plan is governed by the Payment of Gracity Act, 1972, Under the Grarity Acr,
employees are entitled to specific benefit at the time of retirement or revmination of the employment on completion of five years or death while in n:mplr))-'_:nwﬂr.
‘This plan entitles an employee to receive half month's salary for each yenr of completed service at the time of retirement/exit. The Group contributes to a trust
set up by the Group which further contributes to a policy taken from the Life Tnsurance Corporation of lndia. The present value of obligation is determined
based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognize each period of service as giving rise to addidonal employee benefir
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

Based Ion the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the fallowing table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recopnised in the Group's
financial statements as at balance sheer dare:

As ar As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Net defined benefit (asset) /liability

Gatuity (partly funded) 31530 35843
Total employee benefit liabilities 315.30 358.43
Non-current 290.94 35301
Current 2436 242

Movement in net defined benefit (asset) linbility
The following table shows a recor wiliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components:

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Defined benefit  Fair value of Net defined Defined Fair value of plan Net defined
obligation plan assets benefit benefit assels benefit
(asset)/ liability abligation (asset)/ liability
Balance at the beginning of the year 389.61 (23.07) 366.54 383.02 (23.07) 360.55
Included in profit ot loss
Current service cost 58.40 - 5540 60.42 - G042
Interest cost (income) 25.306 (1.74) 23.62 22097 (0.25) 227
83.76 (L74) 82.02 83.39 (0.25) 83.14
Included in OCI b
Remeasurements loss (pain)
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
- financial assumptions (9.79) z (9.79) (1.3%) 0.05 (1.31)
- demographic adjusument - = E . ) )
- experience adjustment (36.84) - (36.84) (13.35) . (1335
Return on plan assets 5 15.18 15.18 (4.40) {241) (6.81)
(46.63) 15.18 (31.45) (19.14) (2.33) (21.47)
Other
Naot consoidered in last year
Contributions paid by the employer - (79.68) (79.68) - (59.81) (52.81)
Fund management charges . 0.53 0.53 i (0.96) (0.96)
Acquisition adjustment Out - - 3 Z = _
Benefits paid (76.43) 53.78 (22.65) (58.20) 55,24 (3.02;
(76.43) (25.37) (101.80) (58.26) (5.53) (63.79)
Balance at the end of the yeat 350.31 (35.01) 315,30 389.61 (31.18) 358,43
Expenses tccognised in the Statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Service cost 5840 60.42
Net interest cost 23,62 2272

82.02 83.14
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Plan asscts
“The plan assets of the Group are managed by Life Insuranee Corporation of India through a trust managed by the Group in terms of an insurance policy taken to

fund obligations of the Group with respect to its gratuity plan. The categories of plan assets as a percentage of ol plan assets is based on information provided
by Life Insurance Corporution ol India with respect to its investment pattern for group gratuity fund for investments managed in total for several other

COmpanics.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 Murch 31, 2021
Tunds Managed by Insurer (investment with insurer) 100008 100,007

Actarial assumptions

Economic assumptions
The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on government bonds at the

accounting date with a term that matches that of liabilitics. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on
long term basis, Valuation aaumptions are as follows which have been selected by the group,

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount rate T 1844-7.220 6.76"0-6.79%%
Expected rate of fature salary increase 6.00% - H.00%% 5.00%-8.00%
Demographic assumptions
Year ended Year cnded
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Retirement age (years) 58.00 58.00
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of TALM (2012-14)
Ages Withdeawal rate ("u)
External /Tnternal
Upto 30 years 232/1.22-300%  2.32/1.22-3.00%
From 31 to 44 years 1.77/0.90-2.00%, L.77/0.90-2.000%

il Mipeuts 014/006-100%  0.14/0.06-1.00%

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reparting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the

defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

Sensitivity due to mortality and svithdrawls are not material and hence impact of change not caleulated. Sensitivity as to rate of inflation, rate of mncrease of
b _ 2 y s

pensions in payament, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate ((.5% movement) (22.23) 2436 (23.92) 26.30
Expected rate of future salary increase (115" movement) 22.82 (20,90 24,39 (22.20)

Description of risk exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time, As such Group is exposed to various risks as follow

A) Salary increases- Actual salary increases will inercase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also inerease the
liability.

B) Investment risk — If Plan is funded then assets liabilitics mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last
valuation date can impact the liability.

€ Discount rate: Reduetion in discount rate in subsequent valuations can Increase the plan’s liability.

D) Mortality & disability — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

I7) Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact

Plan’s liability.

Expected maturity analysis of the defined henefit plans in future years

Duration of defined benefit obligation As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Less than | year 24.35 541
Between 1-2 years 5.63 241
Berween 2-5 years 48.86 49.19
Over 5 years 272.11 307.60
Total 350.95 389.61

Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the following year is Rs. 104.12 Tacs. (March 31, 2021: Rs. 10487 Jacs)
“I'he weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting perind is 9.44-30.21 years (March 31, 2021: 9.44-30,21 years).

Other long-term cmployee benefits:
The Group provides for compensated absences to its employees. The employees can carey-lorward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences
and utilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the-eompensated absences do not fall due wholly
within twelve months alter the end of the period in which the employees render the related service and areifsy

maonths after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefir. K

‘ (L { NEW DELHI
110044
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The present value obligadon in respect of earned leave is determined Lused on actoarial valuation vsing the Projected Unie Credit Method, which recognises cach
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final abligations.

53 Related parties
In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 an Related Party Disclosures, the names of the related parties where control exists and/oc with whom

teansactions have taken place during the vear and description of relationships, as identificd and certified by the management are:

A. Name and description of relationship of the related party
i Associate company Three Sixty One Degree Minds Consulting Private Ld

ii. Employees' benefit trusts, where control exists Career Launcher Employee Group Gratuity Trust

iii. Names of other related partics with whom transactions have taken place during the year :

Key managerial personnel (KMP) Mr. Satya Narayanan R (Chairman and Executive Director)
Me. Gautam Puri (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)
M. Nikhil Mahajan (Exceutive Director and Group CEO Enterprise Business)
Me. Viea) Tyagl (Non-Exccutive Non Independent Director) (upto November 02, 2020)
Ms. Madhumita Ganguli (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Mr. Girish Shivani (Non-Txecutive Independent Director)
Mr. Sanjay Tapriya (Non-Executive Independent Director)
M. Piyush Sharma (Non-Executive Independent Director) (w.e.f, July 17, 2020)
Mr. Tmean Jafar (Non-Execative Non-Independent Director)

Fnterprises in which KNP and their Career Launcher Rducation Foundation, India
celatives are able to exercise significant Bilakes Consulting Private Limited, India
Career Launcer Foundaion

Relatives of KMP Mr. R Sreenivasan
Mz, Shiva Kumar Ramachandran
B. ‘Transactions during the vear: Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a  Enterprises in which KMP and their relatives are able to exercise significant influence
i Loan/ advance given
- Career Launcher Education Foundation 4.00 =

ii  Reimbursement of expense from related partics
- Bilakes Consulting Private Limited 0.18 0.24

iii. Amount paid towards CSR expenscs
- Career Launcher Foundation 40,00 50.00

b Employees' benefit trusts, where control exists
i Miscellaneous Income
- CL Media employee Gratuity Trust = 017

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

c Key management personnel (KMP) and their relatives
Short term employee benefits:

- Mr. Gautam Puri 84.60 5343
- Mr. Satya Narayanan R. 84.60 5343
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 79.17 62,77
- Mr. R Sreenivasan 2496 22.83
- Mr. Shiva kumar Ramachandran 24.96 22.83

ii  Post employment benefits:

- Mr. Gautam Pur 1.12 1.07
- Me. Satya Narayanan R 0.48 0.68
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 340 0.63
iii  Other long term benefits .
- My, Gautam Puri NEW DELHI - 1.36
- Mr. Satyn Narayanan R 110044 - 4.64
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan g / - 17.49
iv  Commission to non-executive Directors
- M. Viraj Tyagi = 0,40
- Ms. Madhumira Ganguhi 31z 140
- Me. Girigh Shivani 1.32 A
- M. Sanjay Tapariya 352 1.90

- Mr. Piyush Sharma 232 (.40
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Related party balances as at the year end: As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Enterprises in which KMP and their relatives are able to exercise signi ficant influence
Current loans
- Career Launcher Fducanon Faundation 1,251.60 1,260.45
Capital advance

- Bilakes Consulting Private Limited 16.00 16,000
Interest acerued but not due on loans given

- Carcer Luuncher Education Foundation 34.79 34.79
Other receivables

~ Catreer Launcher Fducaton Foundarion 091
Other advances

- Bilakes Consulting Private Limired 61.25 6107

Guarantees received :

- Bilakes Consulting Private Limited** 1,214.59 [,214.59
Key management personnel (KMI')
Short tertn employee benefits payable:
- Mr. Gavtam Puri 43,06 2721
- Mr. Satya Narayanan R 42,24 24.28
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 39.87 1108
Related party balances as at the year end: (continued from previous page)

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Post emiployment benefits payable:
- Mr, Gautam Puri 18,94 17.82
- My, Satya Nagayanan R 13.26 12,79
- My, Nikhil Mahajan 12.49 12,00
Other long term benefits payable:
- Mr, Gautam Puri 34.71 34,69
- Mr, Satya Narayanan R 3274 36.78
- My, Nikhil Mahajan 10.98

MNote:

35.75

Apart from above, Directors of the Holding Company L.c Mr. Satya Narayan R, Mr. Gautam Puri and Mr. Nikhil Mahajan have given personal guarantees aprainst
loan and overdraft facilitics, the balance amount of loans puaranteed are Rs, 523,35 lacs (March 31, 2021: Rs, 3,553.72 lacs)

Duting the previous yeat, the Group had incerporated a Section 8 company Career Launcher Foundation which has not been considered for consolidation

purpeses in accordance with applicable Ind AS.

Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties

i. During the year ended March 31, 20212, the Group has written-off Loans and Advances to Career Launcher Gducation Foundation of Rs, Nil.

(Y 2020-21: Rs. Nil). Further, during the year no interest was charged in respect of loans duc from Career Launcher Education Foundation,

ii. Unless otherwise stated, the transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in atm’s length transactions and are at nuarket

value,

As per the Deed exceuted on 31 March 2014, the Holding Company had received a financial guarantee from Bilakes Consulting Private Timited that in case of
default in repayment or short payment of the loan amount payable by CLEF within the given timeframe as per agreement (i ncluding addendum(s) thercon),
Bilakes Consulting Private Limited shall forthwith pay to the Holding Company, the whole unpaid amount or shott paid amount, as the casc may be.

The Holding Company in turn acknowledges and assigns the profits (over and above the book value excluding the expenditure on sale), limited to the amount of
guarantee reccived by the Holding Company, accruing from the sale of the praperty cemprising land and building situated at Plor 157, Krowledge Patk il
Greater NOIDA, Uttar Pradesh,
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54  Corporate Social Responsibility
As per Scetion 135 of the Companics Act, 2013 read with guidelines issued by DPE, the Holding Company is required to spend, in cvery financial year, ar least
two per cent of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR Poliey. The

details of CSR expenses for the year arc as under:

Patticulars March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
A. Gross amount required o be spent by the company - =
B. Amount spent during the year on:

- Construction/acquisition of any asset ~ B
- On purpases other than (i) above 40.39 80,94
¢, The amount of shortfall at the end of the vear our af the : )
amount required to be spent by the Company during the

D. The total of previous years” shortfall amounts; 107,69 976K
E. ‘The reason for above shortfalls by way of a note; R

F. The nature of CSR activities undertaken by the Company. S .
G. The Company has excess amount of Rs. 78.08 lacs 5

(March 31, 2021: Rs, 37.69 lacs) to be carried forward and

set off against the requirement w spend under sub-section

(5) of sectivn 135 up to immediate succeeding  three

financial years.

Details of related party ansactions, eg., contribution to a 40.00 80,94
trust controlled by the company in reladon to CSR
expenditure as per Ind AS 24, Related Party Disclosures.

55 In terms of the dause 22 of chapter V micro, small and Medium enterprises development Act 2006 (MSMLED act 2006), the disclosare of payments due to any
supplier arc as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2022 Marcch 31, 2021

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end
of each accounting period included in

Prineipal amount due to any supplice 66.50 U409
Interest due on above ; 0.20)
The amount of interest paid by the buyet in terms of section 16 of the MSMED ACT 2006 along . -
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each

accounting period

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which bave 4 %
been paid but beyond the appointment day during the period) but without adding the interest

specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting period - =
The amount of fucther interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such = G
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006,

(This space bas been mtentioneally lefi blank)
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56 ‘The Group has in the past undertaken various Central and State Government / Agencies, projects in the educaton / skill development sector, Most of these

57

projects are complete, however the dues from the concerned department / ageney has not been realized mainly on account of delays and long process, The
details of such vocational trade receivables which are outstanding for a considerable period of time are given below. In the apinion of the management it has
made the necessary provision, wherever tequired and such balances are fully recoverable. The demils of amount recoverable are as under and refer note 62 for

expected credit loss.

Vocational reade receivables Total Amount Amounto/s. | Expected Credit [Amount of write off]
for more than 3 Loss (ECL)
years (out of Provision on
total amount) outstanding
amount
As at March 31, 2022 357.59 357.59 27.80 )
As ar March 31, 2021 357.59 357.59 23.44 1.450.00

Share based payments
Description of share-based payment arrangements

Pursuant o the resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and Members of the Company at their respective meetings held on March 6, 2008 and March 31,
2008, the Company introduced its ESOP Plan currently in force, with the name “Career Launcher Employee Stock Options Plan 2008 (hereinafter the *Plan™
or “Scheme’), which provided for the grant of upto 250,000 options (Convertible into 2,50,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each) to employees of the

Company and irs subsidiaries.

Putsuant to the resolutions passed by Board of Directors and Members of the Holding Company at their respectve meetings held on August [, 2014 and
September 3, 2014, the Company miade amendments to the Plan, and changed its name to "Amended Career Launcher Hmployee Stock Options Plan 20087
Further amendments were made to the Plan vide resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and Members of the Holding Company at their respective
micetings held on January 29, 2016 and March 22, 2016, whereby the Company re-named the Plan as "Amended and Restated Career Launcher Employee Stock
Options Plan 20147, The Holding Company renews and extends the term of the Plan as the need arises, from time o time, Accordingly, the Plan was renewed
and cxtended for a period of 4 yeurs ie., from September 5, 2021 to September 4, 2025 by the Members of the Company at the 25th Anoual General Meeting
held on Seprember 07, 2021 -

As on March 31, 2022, 167,525 number of options (335,050 number of options after the Sub-Division of each Equity Share of Rs. 10/- into 2 Equity Shares of
Rs. 5/- each, effective from October 1, 2021) remained to be granted under the Plan (March 31, 2021: 167,525 number of aptions).

Note: Under the Plan, the options that are forfeited, lapsed or terminated, are pooled back and can be granted again. It is hereby confirmed that at no poine of
time did the total pumber of options granted under the Plan exceeded 250,000 (equivalent o 5,00,000 options after the Sub-Division),

No options were granted during the year, The NRC Committee as well as Board of Directors did, however, approve the allocation of Options under the Plan to
identified employees of the Company and its Subsidiaties, and appraved the Terms of Grant, Vesting and Exercise of the Options at their respective Mectings
held on Eehruary 02, 2022, These Grants are scheduled to he made in the Financial Year 202223,

Details of options outstanding at the year end with the range of exercise price and weighted average remaining conteactual life:

Employees entitled No. of options Vesting conditions Weighted Contractual life of options (in year)
March 31, 2022 NIL 3 years' service from the grant date =
March 31, 2021 NIL 3 years' service from the grant date -

(This space has been intentionalfy lft Wank)
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58 Disposal group - Assets held for sale

Particular i o

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Property, plant and equipment (refer note A and B below) 5,259.86 3,468.45
Orther current assets (refer note A below) - 0.66
Total Assets 5,259.86 3,469.11

MNuotes:

A On March 16, 2017, the Group entered into a Business Transfer Agreement with I-Take Carve Private Limited (the “Buyer’) to sell its Infrastructure Services
business (the “Assets”™) on the slump sale basis. The proposed sale of business is consistent with the Group’s long-term strategy to discontinue its [K-12
business. As on date, transaction is caneelled as [-Take Care Private Limited hasn't been able to arrange the requisite funds to close the sale, accordingly,
acdvance received has been refunded. Also, the Management 15 in parallel discussions with other partics to locate an alternate buyer to give effect to the
disposal of the Assets. As the delay 1s caused by the events and cireumstances beyond the Group’s control and that the Management remains committed to its
plan to sell the Assets and the Group continues to disclose such Assets as "Disposal group-Assers held for sale” in accordance with Ind AS-105 "Non-
Current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations",

The following statement shows the revenue and expenses of the business subject to slump sale:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue = -
Qther income - 17.12
Other expenses 0.81 0.89
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations before tax (0.81) 16.23
Income-tax expenses ~ .
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations after tax ' (0.81) 16.23

As at March 31, 2022, the carrying value of the Property, plant and equipment and other assets ave listed below. The process of selling the said listed assets
expected to be completed on March 31, 2023,

Particular . by

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Property, plant and equipment (Land and building at Indore and Raipur) 2,988.53 2.922.29
Other current assets = 0.66
Total assets 2,988.53 2,922.95
The net cash flows attributable to the business subject to slump sale are stated below:-

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Operating activitics _
Investing activities =
Financing activities -

B Duting the current year, the Group has classified Land and Building amounting to Rs. 2,271.33 Lacs located at Greater NOLDA, as assets held for sale in
accordance with Ind AS 105 "Non-Currenc assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations", The carrying value of asset held for sale as on the date of
agreement does not exceed the fair value less cost to sale and hence there is no impairment loss to be recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss.

During the previous year the Group had classified freehold land amounting Rs. 518,65 lacs and Building amounting to Rs. 27.51 lacs located at Faridabad, as
assets held for sale. On July 22, 2020, the Group entered into an agreement for sale of its property situated at Faridabad, for which the total amount of
consideration is Rs, 750.00 lacs. During the previous year, the Group had disclosed such assets as assers held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 "Non-
Current asscts held for Sale and Discontinued Operations',

The carrying value of assets held for sale as on the date of agreement does not exceed the fait value less cost to sale and hence there is no impairment loss o
be recognised in the consolidated statement of profir and loss.

Particular AL As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Property, plant and equipment - Land and building at Greater NOIDA
(31 March 2021: Land and building at Faridabad) 2.271.33 546.16
Total Assets 2,271.33 546.16
(This spave bas been inteutionalfy left blank) U AT‘
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59 Operating segiments

A,

-

Basis for Segmentation
i1 s presented in respeet of the Group’s key operanng segments. The operaning segments are based on the Group’s munagement and inrernal reporung

Segment informati

structire. The Chiel Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") identfies primary segments based on the dominane souvce, naore of risks and returns

ind the internal organisaton

and management siructure, The operating segments are the segments for which separate Anancial information s available and for wineh operaong profit/loss amounts are

evaluated regularly. All opetating segments” operating resules are reviewed vegularly by the Board of Direerors to make decisions abour resourees oo be allseared o the segments

and assess their performance.

The "Board of Dircetors' have been idennfied as the CODM, since they are responsible for all major decision wort, the preparadon and execntion of business plan, preparation

of budpet, planning, expansion, alliance, joint venture, merpger and acquisition, and expansion of any Facility.

Previously the Group represented the revenue and results of segments a5 under:

(i)Consuner business comprising of Consumer Test Prep (Partner and Digital) and Consumer Publishing,

(iyEnterprise business comprising of Enterprise Insurutiona and Enterprise Corporate,

(iiiyOhers comprse discontinued [K-12 business and sealed down Vocational Training business

However, keeping in view the changes to the internal reporting done to the CODM, the Manugament af the Group has re-assessed the sepment presented in the consolidated

financial results. Accordingly, the teportable segments represent:

Reportable segments

FdTeeh: The Bducation segment of the Group comprising of business generated and serviced through educational services such as coaching, content and plalform services.

MarTech: The integeated solution driven services for corporates through Experiential marketing and Event management (physical and virtoal events), Marconum, Customized

Engagement Programs (CEPs), Manpower services and Sales management.

Onthers: The discontinued K-12 husiness and sealed down Vocational mruning business.

Information about reportable segments

Segment asscts, Segment linbilities and Segmen profit and loss are measured in the same way as in the Gnancial statements.

Infarmation regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment profit (hefore as), s included i the internal
managemment reports that arc reviewed by the Group's Board of Directors. Segment profir is used ro measure performance as management helieves that such information is the
most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relarive w other entitics that eperate within these industrics. Inter-sepment pricing, if any, is determined on an arm's

lenpth basis.

Reportable segment
Year ended Marcch 31, 2022 EdTech MarTech Others Total
Sepment revenue 1293271 7.813.38 2 20,746.09
Revenue from external customers 12,932.711 7,813.38 e 20,746.09
Segment results 2,264.21 511.35 (112,143 2,663.42
Segment assets L1,026.28 4,355.64 19,196.14 34,778.00
Segment liabilities 361289 1,944.26 3,057.43 R,614.58

Reportable segment
Year ended March 31, 2021 EdTech MarTech Others Taral
Segment revenue 10,668.80 7,562.10 - 18,230.90
Revenue from external costomers 10,668.80 7,562.10 . 18,230.90
Sugment results 537.78 347.90 (1,250.23) (364.55)
Segment assels 12,776.71 295543 19,434.37 35,166.51
é'ﬁanlcnt linbilities 2,518.18 1,964.84 597261 10,455.63

Reconciliations of information on reportable segments

Revenues
EdTech
MarTeeh
Oithers

Taotal revenues

Trofit hefore 1ax

Towl loss before tax for reportable segments

Criber income

Unallocated expenses:

-Finanee cost
~Other expenses

Profit/ (luss) befoce share of loss of equity acconnted investees, exceptional items and tax

Less: lisceptional items

Loss of associates aceounted for using equity method

Share of net loss of associates accounted for using the cquity method
Profit/ (luss) before tax

Tax expense

Profit/ (loss) after tax

Year ended

Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1293271 1U,668.60
781338 7,562.10
20,746.09 18,230.90
2,603.42 “{364.35)
870,29 59,67
35225 563.11
1,420.95 1,506,90
1,760.36 (1,474.89)
1,760.36 (1,474.8%)
(37.59) 4.9
1,722.77 (1,479,83)
342.90 (203,32
1,379.87 (1,276,51)
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Discontinued Operations

(Loss)/ profit from discontinued operanan before tx
Tax expense

(Loss)/profit from discontinued operation

Other comprehensive income

Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
tixchange difference on ranslation of forcign operntion
Tncome tax relaring m above

Remeasurement of defined benchit plans

Income tax relanng o above

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Assels

EdTech

MarTech

Others
Unalloeared amounts
Total assves

Liabilities
EdTech
MarTech
Others

Unallozated amounts
Toral linhilitics

Geographic information

Year ended
Mareh 31, 2022

Year ended

March 31, 2021

(.81} 16,24
(L81) 16.23
.03 S i
(11.22) (9.40)
32,640 21.47
(8.53) (5.38)
78.87 4403
1,457.94 (1,216.25)
Asgat As at
Murch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
026,28 12776.71
4,555.64 295543
469.63 466,19
18,720.51 18,968.18
34,778.06 35,166.51
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
3,612.84 250818
1,444,260 1,960,684
06261 495,30
230082 527731
3,614.58 10,455.63

The geographic information amalyses the Group’s revenue and pon-current assets by the Group's country of domicile in other countries. In presentiog the geogriphic
information, segment revenue has been based on the geographic location of customers and sepment assets were based on the grographic losation of the assets.
I'he Group 1s domiciled in India, The amount ofits revenue from external custemers broken down hy location of the customess is shown belown

a) Revenues from different geographies

Within India
Cnesicle Tndia

b) Non-current assets®

Wichin India
Ousice Ineia

(Thix space dars been intestionatly 17 bank)

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 Maurch 31, 2021
i8,407.52 16,949 811
2,336.57 1,281.10
20,746.09 15,230.90

As at As at

March 31, 2022 Murch 31, 2021
10,338.24 12,780.62
400,42 40042
10,738.66 13,181.04
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60, TFair value measurement and financial instruments

2 Pinancial instruments — by category and fair values hierarchy
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilues, including their levels i the fair value liesrchy.

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Carrying value Bair value measurement using

FVTPL EVOCI Amortised cost Tatal Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
MNon-current
Invesiment G287 = - 628.73 _ ’ 62673
TLoans x - 314,48 314.48 . . .
Oither tinancial assers - - 125.25 125.25 = . T
Current
Investments 3.986.50 = - 3,986.50 - 3,986.50 =
Trade recevables - - 4.994.57 4,994.57 . . i
Cash and cash cquivalents - - 1,519.03 1,519.03 i : -
Bank balaneces other than cash and cash cquf\'::]tma - - 584.35 584.35 s = =
T.oans - - 1,301.08 1,301.08 - =
Cther Anancial assets C - 2,075.56 2,075.56 - = =
Total 4,615.23 - 10,914.32 15,529,55 - 3,986.50 628.73 |
Financial liabilities
MNon-current
Borrowings = + 29239 292,39 | = = ~
Lease lialality - - 35241 352.41 - 4
Current
Borrowings - - 1,404 .94 1,404,94 2 . ‘
Lease liabialiy . - 163,12 163.12 = il -
Treade payables = » 2,845.05 2,045.05 . .
(nher financial liabilities = - 71267 712,67 = 4 =
Total - - 5,770,58 5,770,58 - - »
As at March 31, 2021
TParticulats Carrying value Fuir value measurement using

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost Tatal Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Mon-current
Investments 58873 - - 588.73 = 4 58873
Loans - - 98.09 98.09 <
Other fivancial assers 2 - 6171 61.71 = ¥ .
Current
Invesunents 3,852.91 . - 3,852.91 o 3,35291 .
Trade receivables = - 5,247,506 5,247.56 2 "
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,725.42 1,725.42 = = =
Bank balanees ather than cash and cash equivalents - - 1,239.62 1,239.62 _ .
Loans - - 1,311.60 1,311.60 = . .
Other financial assets . - B86.03 886.03 ; 4 :
Total 4,441.64 - 10,570.03 15,011.67 - 3,852.91 588.73
Financial liabilitics
MNon-current
Borrowings . - 566.85 560,85 z .
|case liability = o 146.00 146,00 " 5
Current
Borrowings - - 3,722.83 3,722.83 3 _ 3
Lease liability = = 115.24 115.24 L ] R
Trade payables : = 2480014 2,480.14 2 = s =
Chher Aoancial liabilioes - - #75.00 875.00 = = -
Total - - 7.906.15 7,906.15 - , -

"The Group’s borrowings have been contracted at Hoating rates of intezest, whieh tesets at short intervals, Accordingly, the canying value of such borrowings fincluding interest accued
bur no due) approximates faie value, '

The earrying amounts of uade weecivables, tade payables, cash and cash cquivalents and other financial assets and lizbilitics, approsimates the faic values, due to their short-term nagars
Fair value of non-current financial assets which includes bank deposits (due for matutity alter twelve months from the reporting date) and security deposits is smiliar w the carrying value
as there is no significant differences between carrying value and Fair value, ’

“There have been no tansfers berween Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Speeific valuation wehniques used to value non cutrent financial asscts and liabilitics for whom the fair values have been determined based on present values and the appropriate discount
rates of the Group at each balance sheet date, The discount tate is based on the weighted average cost of bortowings of the Group ar each balance sheet date

b Financial risk management
The Group has exposure to the following risks aiising from financial instruments:
m Credit risk
= Ligudity aisk
= Currency rate risk
= |ncerest rate tisk
Risk management framework
The Group's Board of Dircctors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework, The Bonvd of Directors have authorised scmo
management w establish the processes and ensure conteal over risks through the mechanism of propetly defined frameworlk in line with the businesses of the group, :

The Group's visk management policies ave established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate visks limits and con f‘f?ME P T
limits. Risk manageraent policies are reviewed repularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities.
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b. Financial risk management (continued)

(i) Credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the toal carrying amount of these financial assets in the Balance Shee.

Pasticulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Trade receivables 4.994,57 5,247.56
Cash and cash equivalents 1,519.03 1.725.42
Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 584.35 1,239.62
Loans 1,301.08 1,311.60
Oither financial assets 2,075.56 886.03

Credit risk 1s the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 1ts contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Group’s receivables from customers. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The Group's credit risk is primatily to the amount due from customers. The Group maintains a defined credit palicy and monitors the exposures to these
credit risks on an ongeing basis,

i, Credit risk on loans is limited as the loans are given to other related parties.

ii. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Group invests in deposits with scheduled commercial hanks with high credit ratngs assigned by
domestic credit rating agencies.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. Trade receivables are unsecured and are derived from
revenue earned from customers primarily located in India. The Group does monitor the economic enviorment in which it operates and the Group manages
its Credit risk through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continously moniroring credit worthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit
terms in the normal course of business.

On adoption of Ind AS 109, the Group uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Group establishes an allowance for
impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade receivable. The management uses a simplified approach (i.e. based on lifetime RCL)
for the purpose of impairment loss allowance, the Group estimates amounts based on the business environment in which the Group operates, and
management considers that the trade receivables are in default (credit impaired) when counter party fails to make payments as per terms of sale/service
agreements. However the Group based upon historical experience determine an impairment allowance for loss on receivables.

The gross carrying amount of trade receivables is Rs. 5,301.77 lacs (March 31, 2021: Rs, 5,517.17 lacs). Trade receivables are generally realised within the
credit period.

The Group believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour.

The Group's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables are as follows:

Gross cartying amount

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Not Due 1,361.56 432.01
0-90 days past due 1,160.30 1,267.59
90 ro 180 days past due 646.77 407.02
180-365 days 277.79 1,389.01
365-730 days 1,038.05 793.23
More than 730 days 817.30 1,228.31
Total 5,301.77 5,517.17

Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade teccivables:

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning 269.61 416.19
Tmpairment loss recognised / {reversed) 37.50 (146.58)
Balance at the end 307.20 269.61

(This spave bas been infentionally Jeft blank)
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b. Financial risk management (continued)

(i1} Liquidity risk

Liguidity rsk s the rigk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeung the oblignuons associated with s finaneial habihoes that are setded by delivering cash or
another financial asser. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage 1o the gronp’s reputation.

“The Group believes that its liquidity positon, including total cash (including bank deposits under lien and the anticipated future internally generated funds from operations)

will enable it to meet its future known obligations in the ordinary course of business.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies mantainng sufficient cash and marketable securitios and the avalability of funding through an adequate amount of credit
facilives o meer obligations when due. The Greoup's palicy is o regulary monitor its Lquidity requirements o ensure: that it maintaing sufficient reserves of cash and
funding from group companies 1o meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.
“The Group's liquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the (ollowing:
- Day to day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met.
- Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Group's liguidity posinon on the basis of expected cash flows.

Exposure to liquity risk
T'he following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date,

As at March 31, 2022 Carrying Contractual cash flows
Aonat Total Less than one | Between one | More than 5 years
year year and five
years

Dorrowings
Secured

-From banks

) Vehicle loans 3064 30.64 1458 16.06 -

b) term loans 44544 44544 166.67 23837 =

~From others/ financial institution

a) Term loan 96449 96.49 9522 1.27 i
Current borrowings
Seeured

-Cash eredit [rom banks 1,106.50 1,106.50 1,106.50 - -

Unsccured

-Hrom athers 18.09 18.09 18.09
"I'tade payables 2,845.05 2,845.05 2.400.08 35497 5
Lease Liability (current & non cucrent) 515.53 515.53 163.12 35241 =
Orther financial labilities

Unpaid dividend 2.56 2.56 2.56 - F

Payable for selling sharcholders 28.06 28.06 2806 - 3

Employee related payables 652.16 65216 652.16 = p

Receipt on behalf of clients 29.89 20,89 29.89 - ,
Total 5,770.42 5,770.42 4,766.94 1,003.48 -
As at March 31, 2021 Carrying Contractual cash flows

amount Tuatal Less than one | Between one | More than 5 years
year year and five
years

Borrowings
Secured

-I'rom banks

a) Vehicle loans 48.30 45.30 16.96 31.34 i

b) Term loans 610,06 010.06 172.22 444,44 -

-I'rom athees/financial insttunon

a) Term lonn 349.28 349.28 250.96 98.32 -
Current borrowings
Secured

-Clash credit from banks 326224 3,262.24 3,262.24 - =
Unsecured

-[rom others 13.84 13.84 13.84 - "
T'rade payables 2480014 2,480.14 2480014 - =
Lease Liability (current & non current) 261.24 261.24 115.24 146.00 =
Other financial liabilies

Unpaid dividend 2.56 256 2.56 -

Payable for selling shareholders 28.06 28.06 28,06 -

Emplovee related payables Te0.61 760.61 T60.61 =

Receipt on behalf of clicnts 43.86 83.86 43.86 _
T'atal 7,906.78 7,906.78 7,186.68 720,10
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B. Financial risk management (continued)

i1, Market risk

Matket tisk 15 the risk that the future cash fows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market nsk comprises three
rypes of visk: interest rate risk, curtency visk and other price risk, the Company mainly has exposure to two type of marker risk namely: currency risk and
in acceptable parameters, while

interest mate risk. The objective of market risk management is to manape and contol market sk exposures with

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is
exposed to the effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign curreney exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows to the extent of sarnings

and expenses in Foreign currencies. Exposure atises primarily due to exchange rate fluctuations berween the funcrional curre

from the Company's operating, investing and financing activities,

There are no derivative contracts entered by the Company. Hence, there is no associated risk.

TExposure to currency risk

2021 are as below;

ncy and other currencies

3

The summary of quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk, as expressed in Indian Rupees, as ar March 31, 2022 and March 31,

Particulars As at March 31, 2022
AED Amount in AUD Amount in UsD " Amount in
INR INR INR
Financial assets
Trace receivables 37.07 761.18 . 0.32 2397
Other financial asset 2.01 41.56 = I :
Other bank balances - - - - = =
39.08 802.74 4 “ 0.32 23.97
Financial liabilities
Trade pryables and other Liabilities 573 11843 - 0.25 19.09
5.73 118.43 - - 0.25 19.0%
Net exposure in respect of recognised assets 33.35 684.31 - ’ 0.07 4.88
Particulars As at March 31, 2021
AED Amount in AUD Amount in UsD Amount in
INR INR INR
Financial assets
Trade receivables 24.75 493.69 2.26 44.88 943 660.23
Other financial asset 0.93 18.55 2 7.69 309,49
Other bank balances 4.86 96.94 i - . _
30.54 609.18 2.26 44,88 16.72 1,059.72
Financial liabilities
Trade payables and other Liabilites 1.35 26.93 - 5 U.68 4974
1.35 26.93 = - 0.68 49.74
MNet exposure in respect of recognised assels 29.19 582.25 2.26 44.88 16.04 1,009.98

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against below currencies at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 would have
affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign carrency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown
below. This analysis assumes that all other vatiables, in patticular interest rates, remain constant.

Particulars Profit or loss (in Rs. Lacs) Equity, net of tax
(in Es. Lac)
Strengthening Strengthening | Weakening | Strengthening | Weakening
1% depreciation / appreciation in Indian
Rupees against lollowing foreign currencics:
Fot the year ended March 31, 2022
AED 6.84 (6.8 4.98 (h9%8;
AUD = . - -
UsSD 0.05 {0.05) 0.04 (00
Total 6.89 (6.89) 5.02 (5.02)
For the yeat ended March 31, 2021 /f JF:I-_.E:\(\;
ALD y (5 A 1 5.82 (5.82) 4.23 (.23)
SGD G wew DELHY x ; } _
AUD 110044 4 (.45 (0.45) 0,33 (0.33)
| USD B o . 757 o (LO.10Y 734 | (7.34)
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. Financial risl management (continued)

Interest rate risk
Tnterest rate visk is the visk that the futare cash Hows of a financial instument will fluctuate because of changes in macker interese races. The Giroup’s
man interest rate risk arises from long-term and short eem borrowings with variable interest vates, which expose the Group o cash flow interest rate

-Exposute to interest rate risk

‘The Group's interest rate risk arises majorly from the term loans from banks carrying floating vate of interest. These obligations exposes the Group to
cash fow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Group's borrowing to interest rate changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting
: :

period are as follows:

Variable-rate instruments As at As at
March 31, 2022 Match 31, 2021

Term loans from banls and others 541.93 965,04

Vehicle loans 30.64 44.30
Cash eredit from banks 1,106.50 3.262.24
Tutal 1,679.07 4,276.48

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profic or loss by
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Particulars Profit or loss Lquity, net of tax

50 bps increase 50 bps decrease 50 hps increase 50 bps decrease
Interest on loans from banks
For the year ended March 31, 2022 11.65 (10.65) 7.69 (7.69)
For the year ended March 31, 2021 21.07 (21.07) 15.32 (15.32)
Interest on loans from others :
For the year ended March 31, 2022 20.29 (20.29) 14,65 (14.65)
Por the year ended March 31, 2021 19.50 (19.50) 14,18 (14.18)

Capital Management
For the purpose of the group’s capital management, capial inchudes issued equity share capital and all athey equity reserves attributable to the equity

holders of the Group.

Management assesses the Group’s capital requirements in order to maintain an cfficient overall financing structure. The Group manages the capital
suncture and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in cconomic conditions and the visk characteristics of the underlying assets,

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may return capital to sharcholders, raise new debt or issue new shares.

The Group menitots capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculared as interest-bearing debts divided by total eapital (equity
attributable to ownets of the parent plus interest-bearing debts).

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Borrowings 1,697.33 +4,289.68
Less : Cash and cash equivalent 1,519.03 1,725.42
Adjusted net debt (A) 178.31 2,564.26
Total equity (B) . 26,163.49 24,710.89
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) 0.68% 10.38%

(This space has been intentianally lft bank)
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Interests in other entities

Subsidiaries

‘The Group’s subsidiarics at March 31, 2022 ave set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of cquity shares that are held divee tly
by the group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting vights held by the group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their

principal place of business.

Name of the Entity Place of Ownership interest held by the | Ownership interest held by non-
business/ country group as at controlling interests as ar
of incorporation | March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021| March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited India 100.005%0 100.00% E =
Kestone Asia Hub Pte Timited Singapore 100.00%, 100.00% - %
Career [auncher Private Limited (w.e.f. March 15, 2021) India 100.00% = = P
1CE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited India 69.50% 58.95% 30.500%4 41.05%,

CL Educate (Africa) Ltd (w.e.f. January 13, 2020 Mautitius 90.00% 90.00% 10.00%, 10.00%,
Kestone CL US Limited USA 100.00% 100.00% = %

Principal activities of group companics

Kestone Asia Hub Pte Ltd

Kestone Asia Hub Pte Ttd provides integrated business, marketing and sales services to corpotate customers (including event management), marketing support
(including digital marketing support in the form of online marketing initiatves, o support oftline matketing campaigns), customer engagement (including audience
generation, lead generation, loyalty and reward programs and contest management), managed manpower and training setvices.

Career Launcher Private Limited
CL.PL was incorporated on March 15, 2021 under the Companies Act, 2013 as awholly owned subsidiary of CL with the objective of becoming the digital abm of

the Career Launcher brand

Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited
CL Meclia Private Limited is currently engaged in the business of publishing study material and books and other academic material.

ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited
This mainly includes test prep coaching examinations like Graduate Aptitude Test in Lingineering/Indian Engincering Services.

Kestone CL US
Ketonte CL Asia Hub Pte, Lid had incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary in USA on March 22, 2018 in the name of Kestone CL US Limited with an objective to

provide Integrated sales and marketing services to the corporate and institutions in USA.

Associate Companies
Set out below are the assaciates of the group as at March 31, 2022 which, in the opinion of the dircctors, are material to the group.

% of ownership interest Carrying amount
Name of entity Place of As at As at Accounting As at As at
business March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021 method March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting Private Chennai, India 1L71% of equity  4.41% of cquity Equity 747.59 785,17
Limited shares shares
‘T'otal equity accounted investments 747.59 785.17

Principal activities of associate entity

Threesistyone Degree Minds Consulting Private Limited- The Company  provides learning and education solutions for corporations, colleges and universities,
acaclemic service providers, and government bodies in India and internatonally. The Company offers graduation,/diploma programs, as well as leadership programs

to COrporate Managers,

(This space has been intentionally feft Mank)
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Significant judgement: existence of significant influence

Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting Private Limited- Holding Company have representation on the board of Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting

Private Limited and right to nominate one Dircetor

determined that it has significant influence over this entity, even though it only holds 11.71% (March 31, 2021: 4.41%) of the voting rights.

The Group has an agrecment with its associate that the profits of the
foresee giving such consent ae the reporting date. The

Summatised financial information for associates

on the Board, it also participates in all significant financial and operannag decisions. The group has therefore

associate will not be distribured until it obtans the consent of the Group. The Group docs not
assocmte had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,

The mbles below provide summarised financial information for the associate. The Informaton diselosed reflects the amounts presented in the Anancial statemens
of the relevant assoetate and not CI, Bducate Limited's share of those amounts. They have been amended to refleet adjustments made by the entity when using the
equity method and modifications tor differences in accounting policies, it any. )

Summarised balance sheet

Total current assets
Total non-current assets

Tatal assets

Toral current liabilites
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

M™et assets

Summarised statement of profit and loss

Reveoue

Interest income

Interest expense

Depreciation and amordsation
Tax expense

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Reconciliation to carrying amount of investments

Investment in associates

Gain on fair valuation

Loss after the period of acquisition
Group's share in the loss since acquisition

Carrying amount of investment in the associate

(This space bas been intentionally lefé blank)

As at As at
March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021
882 33 1,159.24
131.46 25095
1,015.79 1,410.22
160.15 497.12
123.45 152.00
283.61 649,12
730.18 761.10

Year cnded

Year ended

March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021
31422 378,61

2,24 6.38

28.23 34.8
IL94 123.11
1320.90) (111.92)
£320.90) (111.92)
Ag at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

674,57 67457
11243 11243
(43.33) (4 L EU}
(39.41) (1.83)
747.59 785.17
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-, Non-controlling interest (NCT)

Set out below is summarised financial information for the subsidiary that has non-controlling intereses that are material to the Group. The amounrs

disclosed for the subsidiary are before inter-Group eliminations.

i ICEGATE Educational Institute Private Limited
Summarised balance sheet

Current assets
Non-current assets
Total assets

Current liahilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Met assets

% of Non controlling intetest
Accumulated NCI

Summuuised statement of profit and loss

Revenue

Other income

Interest expense

Depreciation and amottisation
Tax expense

Loss for the vear

Other comprehensive income
Toral comprehensive income
[.oss allocated to NCI

Summarised cash flow

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activitics

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

iii. ‘Transactions with non-controlling interest

The group had acquired 50.70% stake in ICEGATE BEducational Institute Private Limited on October 31, 2017, OUn

As at As at
March 31, 2022 Match 31, 2021

§4.82 122.28

213.99 190.96

298.81 313.24

300.18 265.68

11.90 16.94

312.08 282.62

(13.27) 30.6%
30.50% 41.05%,

(0.76) 12.50

Year ended Year ended
Maich 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

239.23 455.31

9.36 11.37

973 11.53

33.82 47.97

(17.36; 2.81
(46.00) (3446}

212 0.78
(43.88) (33.68)
(13.20) (14.40)

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended -
March 31, 2021 -

26.69 16.37
(38.47) (44.59)
5.33 2042
(6.45) (7.80)

13 August 2019, the Group

acquired an additional 7.15% stake & 1.10% on 2 March 2020 for Rs. 76.32 Lacs. Immediately prior to the purchase, the carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests acquired ie. 8.25% NCI was (Rs, 5.54 lacs). The effeet on the equity attributable to the owners of the Group during the year is

summarised as follows:

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired
Consideration paid to nen-controlling interests
Excess of consideration paid recognised in retained carnings within equity

. Other investments in equity shares

Unguoted, measured at FVIPL - non trade

8,817 (March 31, 2021: 8,817) fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each of B&S Stratepgy
Services Private Limited.

447 (March 31, 2021 Nil) fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each of Evue Technologies
Private Limited

#The investment has been measured at fair value through profit and loss using the latest financial information available wit

Yea ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
AS at “ As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
588.73 SHE.72
40,00

h the G_'mup.. -

AT
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Income tax

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current tax expense
Current year 205,94 7.50)
Tax related to prior years (4.86) 38.32
291.08 45.82
Deferred tax
Current year 51.81 (249, 14)
51.81 (249.14)
Total tax expense/(credit) 342.90 (203.32)
Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Ttems that may be subsequently reelassified to statement of profit and loss
- Income tax relating to exchange ditference on translation of foreign operatian (11.22) (9.40)
Ttems that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
~ Income tax relating to remeasurement of defined benefit plans (8.53) (5.38)
(19.75) (4.78)
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rate# Amount Rate#t Amount
Profit /(loss) before tax from continuing operations 1,722,777 (1.479.83)
(Loss) / profit befote tax from discontinuing operations (0.81) 16.23
Total profit/(loss) before tax 27.82% 1,721.96 27.82% (1,463.60)
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 479.05 {407.17)
Tax effect of:
Brought forward losses (82.95) 2,19
Minimum Alternate Tax 17.51 114
Other permanent difference (65.86) 206,57
Tax adjustments relating to earlier years (4.86) 38.32
(136.15) 203.85
Tax expense recoghise in consolidated statemment of profit and lass (A)+(B) 342,90 (202.32)

The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 (2019 Tax Ordinance) provides the group with an option to move to a lower tax rate of 25.17% accompanied
with immediate expiry of carry forward balance of Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit and certain other concessional tax rate benefits enjoyed by (he
Company presently. The Group had reviewed the implications of 2019 Tax Ordinance on its tax liability for the year and one subsidiary company of the Holding
Company has opted for the new tax provisions. However, the remaining Group has decided not to opt for the new tax provisions and the remaining Group will

reassess the option w adopt the new tax provision every year and adjustments, if any, will be considered in due caurse,

# includes surcharge

(This space bar been intentianally left blank)
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Movement in deferred tax balances

Deferred Tax Assets
Louns
Trade Receivable
Oither Financials Assers
Other Current Assers
Deemed Fquity & Other Comprehensive lncome
Lease liability '
Provision for employee benefirs
Provision for employee incentive
Orcher current liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and Investment Property
Carried forward losses
MAT credit enttlement
Sub- Total (a)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Property, plant and equipment & Investment Propetty
Right of use Assets

Other Intangible Asscts

Asset held for Sale

Tnvestment in Subsidiary and Associates

Other Non Current Assets

Provision on Tnventory

Other current assces

Sub- Total (b)

Net Deferred Tax Asset (a)-(b)

Year ended March 31, 2022

As at

Recognized in

Recognized in OCI

As at

March 31, 2021 P&IL March 31, 2022
13.00 5.00 8.00
67.00 (10.26) 77.26
46.00 (7.00) = 53,00
73.00 (70.00) . 143,00

166.46 33,19 7.05 126.22
104.00 (24.00) ; 178,00
15.38 (5.15) - 2353

\ (31.00) : 3100
136030 269.11 - 1L,091.19
39427 (231.61) - 625.88
2,242.41 (71.72) 7.05 2,307.08
737.43 363.53 . 385.97
45.00 (73.00) « 118.00
104,00 (24.00) . 128.00
5.00 (373.00) s 378.00
72.00 - . 72,00
5.00 S 5.00
400 (15.00) 19.00
15.00 5.00 : 10.00
987.43 (116.47) - 1,115.97
1,254.98 44.76 7.05 1,191.10

(Lhir space bas been inteutionall) feft blank)




CIL Educate Limited

Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(AL amoints are i Roees bacs, sonlers oflerise stated)

Movement in deferred tax balances

Deferred Tax Assets

lLoans

Trade Recevable

Ovther Financials Assets

Other Current Assers

Deemed Equiry & Other Comprehensive Income
Lease liabilicy

Provision for Bmployee Benetfic
Provision for Employee Incentive
Oither Current Liahilites

Carried Forward Tosses

MAT eredit entitlement

Sub- Total (a)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Property, plant and equipment & Investment Property
Right of use Assets

Other Intangible Assets

Asset held for Sale

Tavestment in Subsidiary and Associates

Other Non Current Assers

Provision on lnventory

Other current assets

Sub- Tatal (h)

Net Deferred Tax Asset (a)-(b)

Total deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities*
Total deferred tax linbilitics net of deferred tax assers®

Feannot be legally set-off, hence shown separately

Tax losses carried forward

Expire
Lixpire
Lixpite
Txpite
Tixpire
Expire
Never expire
Total

Year ended March 31, 2021

As at Recognized in  Recognized in OCT As at
Macch 31, 2020 P&L March 31, 2021
27.00 14.00 13.00
209.99 142.99 67.00
91.00 91.00 - "
16.00 16.00 5 =
40.00 {6.00) 46.00
245.23 172.23 - 73.00
15941 (12.42) 5.37 166.406
88.00 (16.00) = 104.00
54.00 35.62 - 1838
80612 (554.18) 1.360.30
39541 1.14 - 394.27
2,132.16 (115.62) 5.37 2,242.41
778.48 40.88 - 73743
211.48 166.48 45,00
50.53 (53.47) - 10400
- (5.00) - 5.00
72.00 - - 72.00
5.00 < = 5.00
9.00 5.00 A1)
- (15.00) - 15.00
1,126.49 138.89 - 087.43
1,005.67 (254.51) 5.37 1,254.98
March 31, 2022 - March 31, 2021
1,191.10 1,264.38
= 9.40
1,191.10 1,254.98
Match 31, 2022 Expiry date March 31, 2021 Expiry date
s NA 158.98 2022
34.75 2023 86.10 2023.
93.82 2024 93.62 2024
3531 2026 35.31 2026
101,70 2026 10170 2026
398.05 2029 63.07 2029
3,467.61 - 247240 5
4,131.25 3,041.97
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CL Educare Limited
Naotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Macch 31, 2022
(AN anienis are o Bagpees fnes, miless atberivise stated)

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule 11T

i. The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against rhe Group for holding any Benami property

ii. The Group daes not have any transactions with companies struck off

iii. The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

iv. The Group has not traded ar invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

v. The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds o any other person(s) or entity(ies), including forcign entities (Intermediaries) with the underseanding that
the Intermediary shall

(a) direetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ulumare Beneficiaries), or
(b provide any guarantee, secutity or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics

vi. The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including forcign entitics (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall

() direetly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or cntities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ulimare Beneficiaries), or
() provide any guarantee, security or the like to ot on bebalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries

vii, The Group has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surtendered or disclosed as income during the vear i the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

viiil. Previous period's figures have been regruup::d{rf_‘ciﬂss:iﬁrd wherever necessary 1o correspond with the current period's classification/disclosure,

On 27 November 2018, the Holding Company had filed a Scheme of Amalgamation under sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for the merger of five of its wholly owned Indian subsidiaries, with the Holding Company with an appointed date of 1 April 2019, The Company has received the
requisite regulatory approvals and the merger became cffective on 03 March 2022 on filing the certified copies of the orders sanctioning the scheme with the Nationa)
Company Law Tribunal, This transaction has been accounted as per approved scheme of arrangement and accordingly the comparative periods have heen re-casted to
give cffect to the merger however, the accounting prescribed in the approved scheme is nor in accordance with the accounting treatment as per applicable Appendix €
to Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103 preseribed under preseribed under Section 133 of the Companies Acr, 2013, read with relevant rules and interpretations
issued thereunder. The Holding Company has followed husic principles of consolidation and performed line by line consolidation which has resulted in recognition of
amalgamation adjustment deficit account by Rs. 2,264.54 Lakbs in the consolidated financial statements instead of existing poodwill for the smne amount which was
appunring in the consolidated financial staternents of the Company in respect of the aforesaid wholly owned subsidiaries prior to such merger.

During the financial year 2017-18, Carcer Launcher Education Infrastructure and Services Limited, then a wholly owned subsidiary (Pursuine to the Merger Guder, the
subsidiary has been merged with the holding company) entered into an agreement to scll its School Business vertical (IK-12 Business) to B&S Strategy Services Frivate
Timited (B&S) for a total consideration of Rs. 4,650 lacs comprising Rs. 600 lacs payable in cash and remaining Rs 4,050 lacs by way of cquity shares in B8, Presendy
the sharcholding in B&S, is 8,517 cquity shares of Rs. 10 cach, being 44.18% of wotal cquity of B&S, Further, an overdue smount of Rs, 400 lacs is recoveralble from
B&S rowards cash consideration as per the aforesaid agreement, with the amount now being considerably overdue despire repeated reminders to the B&S
Management. )

"The Holding Company has eaken legal advice and ini tiated legal proceedings before the Honouable Delhi High Court, to protect its interests, including recovery of Rs.
400,00 lacs of the eash consideration. A section 9 petition on the matter of CLEIS vs B8 was heard by Dethi High Court. The Honourable Delhi High Coust on June
22, 2020 appointed a retired Fligh Court Judge as an arbitrator to hear the dispute. The arbiteator has rejected the counter claim of the respondent (B&S Steategy
Serviees Private Limited). Tinal argunmients have been addressed by both the parties. The arbiteator has reserved the owder and award is expected to be pronounced it
the next heating,

During the financial year 2017-18, the Halding Company entered into an agreement to scll its School Business verdcal (IK-12,Business) to B&S Strategy Services
Privace Limited (B&S). Nalanda Foundation (Nalanda) is the Trust that used to run the K-12 school business on behalf of the Holding Company, wherein directors of
the holding company used to hold Trusteeship of the Nalanda which was also transferred rogether with the aforesaid sale of school business 1o B&S. The Company
has balance outstanding as of Match 31, 2022 of Rs, 500 lacs from Nalanda with respect to leasing and infrastructure services, I

The Group has taken legal advice and initiated legal proceedings before the Honorable High Court, to protect its interests, including recovery of Rs. 500,00 lacs aue
from Nalanda. The Honourable Delhi High Court had instructed Nalanda Foundation to return the assets to CLIP and appointed an arbitrator to hear the dispute.,
“The next hearing is scheduled to be held on July 04, 2022,

Buased on its assessment of the merits of the case and the opinion of legal counsel taken thereon, the Management is confident of recovering the balance receivable
from Nalanda in full and hence no provision is requived or made.

“The nationwide lockdown due to spread of COVID-1Y and other significant restrictions imposed on movement had an impact on the sectors/ businesses that the
Group vperates. 'The Management had however, made necessary adjusements to its service and customer acquisition processes, moving to a largely Digital model

- - - - ]
theteby minimizing the business impact of the pandemic.

PPost lifting of the lock down restrictions, the company has carrded a comprehensive assessment of possible impact on its business operations, financial Jial-)ili.tics and
contractual obligations and its liquidity position based on internal and external sources of information. The company doesn’t see any significant risk in recoverabiliy of
its assets or in jts ability to meet its financial liabilities piven the quick and effective steps taken to minimize the sk due to the pandemic. The management continues
to monitar the situation for any materdal changes and upgrade its systems appropriately to tackle such future sitations.

NEW DELHI
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CL Educate Limited

Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022

FAN tmgends v in Tagpees Seee wmbees athertie st}

The Members of die Hokling Company b the 25th Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on Scptember 07, 2021, had approved the sub-division of cach fully paud-uy.
equity share of the Company of face value of Rs. 0/- nto 2 {two) filly p'.ti(l—up equily shares of Pace Value of Rs.5/- each wie.f October 01, 2021 (Record Jate
Consequently, on Oretnber 1, 2021, the equity shares of (he Helding Company have been sub-divided from 14 1,65,678 a face value of R 10 (Ten) vach fully pad v
2,85.31,356 ar face value of Rs. 5 (Av=) each fully pad. Pursoant to such sub-division, earmogs per shace (EPS) presented for the preceding penods have been sesiated i

accordance with requisements of the Tndin Accounting Standad.

The management of the Holding Company in s mecting Fieled on May 19, 2022 has upproved the Duyback of fully-paid up equity shares of face value of Rs, 5/ each
feom 1ts shareholders / beneficial owners (Orher than those wheo are promoters, members of the promoter groupy or persons mcontrol) Trom e apen market il
stock exchange mechanism for an aggeegate amount not exceeding Rs. 1,000 Lakhs (lodian Rupees Cne Thousand Lakhs only). The Company shall ualizz ar least 500
af the Maximum Buyback Size 1. Rs. 500 Lakhs (Indian Rupees Five Hundred Lakhs Only). The time frame for complenon of Buyback shall not exeeed 6 meaths from
the Dite of Commencement of the Buyback.

The consolidated Tnaneial staiements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022 were approved by hoard of direerors on May 19, 2022,
Previous year's gures have heen regrouped [/ rearranged as per the curreat year's presentation for the purpose of comparabilicy.
As per report of even daic.

Fer Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP ' lior and on behalf ol the Board of Dicecier of

Chariered Accountants CL Educate Limited
ICAL Frem regsteation Mo, OGIUTEN/NSOU01S
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